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N O T I C E

NOTICE is hereby given that the 17th Annual General Meeting of 
Welspun Corp Limited will be held on Friday, September 14, 2012 
at the Registered Office of the Company at Welspun City, Village 
Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat – 370 110 at 11.00 
a.m. to transact the following businesses:

ORDINARY BUSINESS:

1)	 To receive, consider and adopt the Balance Sheet as at March 
31, 2012 and the Profit and Loss Account for the year ended on 
that date and the Report of Directors and Auditors thereon.

2)	 To consider declaration of dividend on Equity Shares.

3)	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. K.H.Viswanathan, who 
retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment. 

4)	 To appoint a Director in place of Mr. Rajkumar Jain, who 
retires by rotation, and being eligible, offers himself for re-
appointment.

5)	 To consider and approve re-appointment of M/s. MGB & Co., 
Chartered Accountants as Statutory Auditors, who retires 
at the meeting and being eligible, offer themselves for re-
appointment.

SPECIAL BUSINESS:

6)	 To consider and, if thought fit, to pass with or without 
modification(s), the following resolution as a Special 
Resolution:

	 “RESOLVED THAT pursuant to the provisions of Section 31 
and other applicable provisions, if any, of the Companies Act, 
1956 (including any statutory modifications or re-enactment 
thereof for the time being in force) and the provisions of 
other statutes as applicable and such approvals, consents, 
permissions and sanctions as may be required, the Articles of 
Association of the Company be and are hereby altered in the 
manner and to the extent as set out here below:

	 a)	 After the existing Article 101(e), the following new Article 

be and is hereby inserted as Article 101(f):

		  Meeting by Electronic Mode.

		  101(f)	 Notwithstanding anything mentioned in these 
Articles, the Company may hold General 
Meeting(s), Board Meeting(s) or Committee 
Meeting(s) with participation of entitled persons 
by electronic mode including voting and any other 
incidental thing(s) by electronic mode as may be 
permitted under applicable laws.

	 b)	 After the existing Article 114(b), the following new Article 
be and is hereby inserted as Article 114(c):

		  Service of Notice, Reports, Documents and other 
communications by electronic mode.

		  114(c)	 Notwithstanding anything mentioned in these 
Articles, the Company may send any communication 
including notice of general meeting, annual report 
etc. to any persons by electronic mode as may be 
permitted under applicable laws.

	 c)	 The existing Article 141 be and is hereby substituted by 
the following margin note and Article 141 as under:

		  Board of directors

		  141. 	 Until otherwise determined by the Company in 
general meeting, the number of Directors shall not 
be less than 3 (three) and more than 12 (twelve).  
The appointment of the Directors exceeding 12 
(twelve) will be subject to the provisions of Section 
259 of the Act.

	 RESOLVED FURTHER that the Directors of the Company 
and the Company Secretary be and are hereby severally 
authorized to do all such acts, deeds matters and things as 
may be necessary to give effect to this resolution.”

						      By Order of the B oard  

	 Place: Mumbai			   Pradeep Joshi       
	 Date: May 29, 2012  		  Company Secretary

EXPLANATORY STATEMENT AS REQUIRED UNDER SECTION 
173(2) OF THE COMPANIES ACT, 1956 AND THE INFORMATION 
AS REQUIRED PURSUANT TO CLAUSE 49 OF THE LISTING 
AGREEMENT

BRIEF RESUME OF DIRECTORS BEING RE-APPOINTED

Item Nos. 3 & 4

Re-appointment of Mr. K.H.Viswanathan

Mr. K.H. Viswanathan, aged 50 years, is a non-executive and 
an independent director. Mr. Viswanathan is a qualified cost 
and works accountant registered with the Institute of Costs and 
Works Accountants of India. Mr. Viswanathan has over 25 years 
of experience in the accounting and finance sector and has been 
associated with the companies in manufacturing and the services 
sector.

Details of directorship / membership of the Committees of the 
Board of other companies are as under:

Directorship:

i)	 Welspun Global Brands Limited, ii) RSM Astute Consulting 
(Chennai) Private Limited, iii) RSM Astute Consulting International 
Private Limited, iv) RSM Astute Consulting (Bangalore) Private 
Limited, v) RSM India Private Limited, vi) Welspun Retail Limited.

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees:

He is the Chairman of - Share Transfer and Investors’ Grievance 
Committee of the Company, Audit Committee & Remuneration 
Committee of Welspun Global Brands Limited and a member 
of the Remuneration Committee of the Company, the Audit 
Committee of Welspun Retail Limited and the Finance Committee 
of Welspun Global Brands Limited.

He does not hold any equity shares in the Company.
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Re-appointment of Mr. Rajkumar Jain

Mr. Rajkumar Jain, aged 56 years, is a non-executive and an 
independent director. Mr. Jain is a qualified chartered accountant 
registered with the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India. He 
has over 30 years of experience in the field of finance and accounts 
and has been providing advice to the Company in matters relating 
to accounts and internal control.

Details of directorship / membership of the Committees of the 
Board of other companies are as under:

Directorship:

i)	 Welspun Syntex Limited, ii) Welspun Investments and 
Commercials Limited, iii) Altius Finserve Private Limited, iv) 
Arihant Medical Services Private Limited and v) Bharat Wire Ropes 
Limited

Membership / Chairmanship of Committees:

He is the Chairman of – the Audit Committee and the Finance 
Committee of the Company; the Audit Committee and the 
Remuneration Committee of Welspun Syntex Limited, the Audit 
Committee of Welspun Investments and Commercials Ltd. 
and a member of the Remuneration Committee and the QIP 
Issue Committee of the Company, the Finance Committee of 
Welspun Syntex Ltd. and Welspun Investments and Commercials 
Limited, Remuneration Committee of Welspun Investments and 
Commercials Ltd.

He does not hold any equity shares in the Company.

Members are requested to approve the proposed resolutions at 
Item No. 3 & 4 as Ordinary Resolutions.

None of the Directors of the Company, except Mr. K.H.Viswanathan 
and Mr. Rajkumar Jain is anyway concerned or interested in the 
said resolutions. 

Item No. 6

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs (“MCA”) pursuant to the General 
Circular No. 35/ 2011 and 72/ 2011 (the “Circulars”) enabled the 
Company to hold meetings of the Board of Directors, Committees 
of the Board of Directors and the Shareholders through video 
conference and communication to the shareholders in electronic 
form.

With a view to lending strong support to the Go Green initiative 
of the MCA and in order to bring the enabling provisions of the 
Circulars in the Articles of Association of the Company, it was 

considered appropriate to alter the Articles of Association of the 
Company as set out in the Resolution. 

The Board of Directors recommends the passing of the Resolution 
at Item No. 6 of the accompanying Notice as a Special Resolution.

None of the directors of the Company is anyway concerned or 
interested in the said resolution.

NOTES

1.	 A MEMBER ENTITLED TO ATTEND AND VOTE IS ENTITLED 
TO APPOINT ONE OR MORE PROXIES TO ATTEND AND 
VOTE INSTEAD OF HIMSELF AND A PROXY NEED NOT BE A 
MEMBER OF THE COMPANY.  Proxies, in order to be effective, 
should be duly stamped, completed, signed and deposited at 
the Registered Office of the Company not less than 48 hours 
before the Meeting.

2.	 The Register of Members and Share Transfer Books of the 
Company remained closed from Monday, August 27, 2012 
to Thursday, August 30, 2012 (both days inclusive) for the 
purpose of determination of shareholders entitled to dividend 
for the year ended March 31, 2012.

3.	 Members are requested to immediately inform about their 
change of address, change of e-mail address or consolidation 
of folios, if any, to the Company’s Share Transfer Agent.

4.	 All the correspondence pertaining to shareholding, transfer of 
shares, transmission etc. should be lodged at the Company’s 
Share Transfer Agents:  Link Intime India Private Ltd., Unit: 
Welspun Corp Limited, C-13, Pannalal Silk Mills compound, 
LBS Marg, Bhandup (West), Mumbai – 400 078.

5.	 As part of the Green Initiative circulars issued by the Ministry 
of Corporate Affairs, the Notice and Annual Report of the 
Company are being sent to the shareholders on their respective 
e-mail addresses. However, shareholders requiring a physical 
copy of the Annual Report may write to the Company at the 
Corporate Office at 5th Floor, Welspun House, Kamala Mills 
Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai - 400 
013. The Annual Report alongwith the Notice of the Annual 
General Meeting is available on the website of the Company, 
www.welspuncorp.com.

				    		  By Order of the Board  

Place: Mumbai			   Pradeep Joshi        
Date: May 29, 2012			  Company Secretary
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PROXY FORM

ATTENDANCE SLIP

17th Annual General Meeting – Friday, September 14, 2012

17th Annual General Meeting – Friday, September 14, 2012.

Regd. Folio No / DP Client ID

Regd. Folio No / DP Client ID

No. of Shares held

For Physical Shareholders Only

I/ We ……………………………………………… of …………………………………  in the district of ………………………………………………….. being a member(s) of Welspun Corp 

Limited hereby appoint ……………………………………….. of …………………………………… in the district of ………………………………….. or failing him ………………………………. 

of ……………………………………….. in the district of  ………………………….. as my / our proxy to vote for me / us on my / our behalf at the 17th Annual General 

Meeting of the Company to be held on Friday, September 14, 2012 at Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat – 370110 at 

11:00 am and at any adjournment thereof.

Signed this …….. day of ……………2012.

Signature:  

Affix Re. 1
Revenue  

stamp

Note: The proxy in order to be effective must be deposited at the Registered Office of the Company at the above address not less than 48 hours before 
the time for holding the aforesaid meeting and should be duly stamped, completed and signed.

Regd. Office :  Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat – 370110
Corp. Office: 5th Floor, Welspun House, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013

	 Name & Address of the Shareholder	 Regd. Folio no. 	 No. of shares held

	 If Shareholder, please sign here	 If Proxy, please sign here

I hereby record my presence at the Annual General Meeting of the Company on Friday, September 14, 2012 at Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka 
Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat – 370110 at 11:00 am

Members are requested to fill up the attendance slip and hand it over at the venue.



Regd. Office :  Welspun City, Village Versamedi, Taluka Anjar, Dist. Kutch, Gujarat – 370110
Corp. Office: 5th Floor, Welspun House, Kamala Mills Compound, Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel, Mumbai – 400 013

4

To,

BOOK - POST

If undelivered, please return to:

Welspun Corp Limited, 
5th Floor, Welspun House, 
Kamala Mills Compound,  
Senapati Bapat Marg, Lower Parel,  
Mumbai – 400 013
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To
The Board of Directors
Welspun Corp Limited

1) We have audited the a�ached Consolidated Balance Sheet of Welspun Corp Limited (“the Company”)  
and its subsidiaries, associates and joint venture Companies (Collec�vely referred to as “the Group”) as at 
31 March 2012, the Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss and the Consolidated Cash Flow statement 
for the year ended on that date, annexed thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the 
Company’s management and have been prepared by the Management on the basis of separate financial 
statements and other financial informa�on regarding components. Our responsibility is to express an opinion 
on these financial statements based on our audit.

2) We conducted our audit in accordance with the audi�ng standards generally accepted in India. Those 
standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the 
financial statements are free of material misstatements. An audit includes examining on a test basis, evidence 
suppor�ng the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accoun�ng principles used and significant es�mates made by the management, as well as evalua�ng the 
overall financial statement presenta�on. We believe that our audit provide a reasonable basis for our 
opinion. 

3) (a) The financial statements/consolidated financial statements of subsidiaries and joint ventues, with 
total assets of Rs. 48,706 million  as at 31 March 2012 and total revenues of Rs. 38,284 million for the 
year ended on that date, have not been audited by us. These financial statements have been audited 
by other auditors whose reports have been furnished to us, and in our opinion, in so far it relates to 
the amounts included in respect of those subsidiaries and joint ventures are based solely on the report 
of the other auditors.

 (b) The financial statements of two subsidiaries with total assets of Rs. 0.2 million as at 31 March 2012 
and total revenues of Rs. Nil for the year ended on that date have been consolidated based on the 
management es�mates and therefore unaudited. 

 (c) The financial statements of two joint ventures have been consolidated based on the management 
es�mates and therefore unaudited. The total assets and total revenue considered for consolida�on is 
Rs. 2,995 million and Rs. 365 million respec�vely.

 (d) The financial statements/consolidated financial statements of two associates have been consolidated 
based on the management es�mates and therefore unaudited. The profit of such associates considered 
for consolida�on is Rs. 14 million.

4) We report that Consolidated Financial Statements have been prepared by the Company’s management in 
accordance with the requirements of the Accoun�ng Standard (AS) 21 “Consolidated Financial Statements” 
and AS 23 “Accoun�ng for Investments in Associates in the Consolidated Financial statements” and AS 27 
“Financial Repor�ng of Interests in Joint Ventures”, as no�fied by the Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) 
Rules, 2006.

5) Based on our audit as aforesaid, and on the considera�on of reports of other auditors on the separate financial 
statements and on the other financial informa�on of the components and to the best of our informa�on and 
according to the explana�ons given to us, we are of the opinion that  the a�ached consolidated financial 
statements give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in  
India :

 (a) In case of Consolidated Balance Sheet, of the State of Affairs of the Group as at 31 March, 2012;

 (b) In case of Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit of the Group for the year ended on 
that date; and

 (c) In the case of the Consolidated Cash Flow Statement, of the Cash Flows of the Group for the year 
ended on that date.

For MGB & Co
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari
Partner
Membership Number 105077

Mumbai, 29 May 2012

AUDITORS’ REPORT



(Rs. in million)

Notes  2012  2011 

Equity and Liabili�es

Shareholders' funds

Share capital 2 1,138 91 1,023 34 

Reserves and surplus 3 40,116 76 32,711 99 

41,255.67 33,735.33

Compulsorily conver�ble debentures (Unsecured) [Refer Note 2(F)] 7,883 75     

Minority interest 3,432 73 2,023 56 

Foreign currency monetary item transla�on difference account     65 14 

Non current liabili�es

Long term borrowings 4 39,714 21 32,620 46 

Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 5 4,970 13 4,344 08 

Other long term liabi i�es 6 3,405 39 1,819 06 

Long term provisions 7 244 22 116 63 

48,333.94 38,900.23

Current liabili�es

Short term borrowings 8 7,773 27 4,322 81 

Trade payables 9 32,923 01 15,851 70 

Other current liabili�es 10 14,885 24 12,635 00 

Short term provisions 11 1,740 61 1,964 95 

57,322.13 34,774.46

Total 158,228.22 109,498.72 

Assets

Non current assets 

Fixed assets 12

    Tangible assets 52,585 39 35,928 02 

    Intangible assets 276 95 345 94 

    Bu ld,Operate and Transfer (BOT) 4,571 85 4,598 35 

    Goodwill on conso ida�on  9,887 86 858 71 

    Capital work in progress 6,190 89 7,772 41 

Non current investments 13 354 62 38 57 

Long term loans and advances 14 5,060 53 2,936 01 

Other non current assets 15 357 06 25 37 

79,285.15 52,503.39

Foreign currency monetary item transla�on difference account 322 97     

Current assets 

Current investments 16 19,430 62 14,366 43 

Inventories 17 25,826 65 18,478 51 

Trade receivables 18 15,259 93 12,892 82 

Cash and bank balances 19 10,255 37 7,508 49 

Short term loans and advances 20 5,809 50 2,918 30 

Other current assets 21 2,038 03 830 78 

78,620.10 56,995.33

Total 158,228.22 109,498.72 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1  45

As per our a�ached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co. B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala

Chartered Accountants Execu�ve Chairman Director

Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju

Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Membership Number 105077

Mumbai Pradeep Joshi

29 May 2012 Company Secretary

(Rs. in million)

Notes  2012  2011 

Revenue

     Revenue from opera�ons (gross) 22  93,447 32  82,847 82 

     Less: Excise duty  3,681 56  2,627 07 

     Revenue from opera�ons (net)  89,765.76  80,220.75 

     Other income 23  2,675 84  1,139 45 

Total  92,441.60  81,360.20 

Expenditure

     Cost of materials consumed 24  61,247 38  47,979 34 

     Purchases of traded goods 25  378 37  457 60 

     Changes in inventories of finished goods, work / goods in process 26  (2,714 65)  1,615 72 

     Employee benefits expense 27  4,875 68  3,908 78 

     Other expenses 28  17,408 42  13,614 72 

     81,195.20  67,576.17 

Profit before finance costs, deprecia�on / amor�za�on and tax  11,246.40  13,784.02 

Less :

Deprecia�on and amor�za�on expense 12  3,515 23  2,439 47 

Finance costs 29  3,999 24  2,240 27 

Profit before tax  3,731.92  9,104.29 

Less : Tax expense

     Current tax  Current year  1,224 61  1,941 44 

                           Earlier years  31 45  0 05 

     MAT credit en�tlement  (44 91)     

     Deferred tax  291 62  929 83 

Profit A�er Tax before Minority Interest and Share of results of Associates  2,229.15  6,232.96 

     Share of Profit / (Loss) from Associates  14 38  (2 72)

     Minority Interest  141 90  100 01 

Profit a�er tax  2,385.43  6,330.25 

Earnings per share of Rs  5 each fully paid up (in Rs ) 40

         Basic  10 89  30 95 

         Diluted  9 71  28 66 

Notes forming part of the consolidated financial statements 1  45

As per our a�ached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co. B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala

Chartered Accountants Execu�ve Chairman Director

Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju

Partner Managing Director Chief Financial Officer

Membership Number 105077

Mumbai Pradeep Joshi

29 May 2012 Company Secretary

Consolidated Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 MarchConsolidated Balance Sheet as at 31 March
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Note 1  Corporate Informa�on

  Welspun Corp Limited (hereina�er referred to as “the Parent Company” or “the Company”) together 

with its subsidiaries, associates and joint ventures (collec�vely referred to as “the Group”) are engaged 

in the business of Produc�on and coa�ng of High grade Submerged Arc Welded Pipes, Hot Rolled Steel 

Plates and Coils, Gas based Sponge Iron (Direct Reduced Iron  DRI and Hot Brique�ed Iron  HBI), 

Infrastructure, Oil and Gas explora�on, Energy and Power Genera�on.

  Significant Accoun�ng Policies

 I. Basis of Consolida�on

 a) The Consolidated Financial Statements (CFS) of the group are prepared under the historical cost 

conven�on on accrual basis in accordance with the Generally Accepted Accoun�ng Principles in 

India and Accoun�ng Standard 21 on “Consolidated Financial Statements” issued by the Ins�tute of 

Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI),  to the extent possible in the same manner that adopted by the 

Parent Company for its separate financial statements by regrouping, recas�ng or rearranging figures 

wherever considered necessary.

 b) The consolida�on of the financial statements of the parent company and its subsidiaries is done on 

a line by line basis by adding together like items of assets, liabili�es, income and expenses. Figures 

pertaining to the subsidiary companies have been reclassified wherever necessary to bring them 

in line with the Group Financial Statements. All significant inter group transac�ons, unrealized  

inter company profits and balances have been eliminated in the process of consolida�on. Minority 

interest in subsidiaries represents the minority shareholders propor�onate share of the net assets and 

net income.

 c) CFS are prepared to the extent possible using uniform accoun�ng policies for transac�ons and other 

events in similar circumstances except for policy differences for which no adjustments made in the 

accounts are disclosed as under :

 i) In case of three subsidiaries, the liability on account of re�rement benefits is provided on es�mated 

basis as per local law instead of actuarial basis.The liability represents 11.73 % of the total employee 

benefits liability of the group as at the year end.

 ii) In case of a subsidiary,inventories are valued on first in first out (FIFO) basis.Such inventory represents 

0.80% of total inventories of the group as at the year end.

 iii) In case of a subsidiary, tangible fixed assets are depreciated on wri�en down value method represen�ng 

0.58% of total fixed assets of the group as at the year end.

 iv) In case of a subsidiary, ancillary cost for arrangement of borrowings are amor�sed over the period 

of borrowings instead of expensed when incurred. Unamor�sed balance as at 31 March 2012 is  

Rs. 25.03 million.

 d) The CFS includes the Financial Statements of the Parent Company and the subsidiaries (as listed in the 

table below). Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which effec�ve control is acquired and 

are excluded from the date of transfer / disposal.

Name of the Subsidiaries Nature of Business
Country of 

Incorpora�on
Extent of 
Holding

Direct Subsidiaries

Welspun Pipes Limited Manufacturer of Steel Pipes India 100% (100%)

Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Oil and Gas Explora�on India 100% (100%)

Welspun Pipes Inc SPV for Steel Pipes Business USA 100% (100%)

Welspun Tradings Limited Trading in Steel Products India 100% (100%)

Welspun Infratech Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun Construc�ons Private Limited 
(upto 21 March 2012)

SPV for Steel Pipe Business India           (100%)

Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited SPV for Steel Pipes Business Mauri�us 89 98% (88 11%)

Welspun Maxsteel Limited 
(w e f 13 August 2011)

Manufacturer of Sponge Iron India 87 35% (NA)

Indirect Subsidiaries

Held through Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited

Welspun Middle East Pipes Company LLC Manufacturer of Steel Pipes 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

50 01% (50 01%)

Welspun Middle East Pipes Coa�ng Company LLC Coa�ng of Pipes 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

50 01% (50 01%)

Welspun Middle East DMCC Marke�ng Company Dubai, UAE 100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Pipes Inc.

Welspun Tubular LLC Manufacturer of Steel Pipes USA 100% (100%)

Welspun Global Trade LLC Marke�ng Company USA 100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Natural Resources Private 
Limited

Welspun Plas�cs Private Limited Oil and Gas Explora�on India 100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Infratech Limited

Welspun Projects Limited Infrastructure Development India 61 12% (61 12%)

Welspun Road Projects Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun Infra Projects Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 60% (60%)

ARSS Bus Terminal Private Limited                                            
(w e f 3 August 2011)               

Infrastructure Development India 45% (NA)

Held through Welspun Projects Limited

MSK Projects (Himmatnagar Bypass) Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

MSK Projects (Kim Mandavi Corridor) Private 
Limited

Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun BOT Projects Private Limited 
(w e f 12 April 2011)

Infrastructure Development India 100% (NA)

Anjar Road Private Limited 
(w e f 16 March 2012)

Infrastructure Development India 100% (NA)

Welspun Energy Maharashtra Private Ltd  
(upto 5 June 2011)

Infrastructure Development India         (51%)

Held through Welspun Infra Projects Limited

Welspun Water Infrastructure Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun Energy Transporta�on Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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 e)  Associates

  The Group has adopted and accounted for Investment in the following Associates in this CFS using the 
“Equity Method” as per AS 23 issued by ICAI.

Name of the Company Nature of Business Country of Incorpora�on
Extent of 
Holding

Red Lebondal Limited SPV for Steel Pipe Marke�ng Cyprus 25% (25%)

Welspun Energy Limited * Power Genera�on India 26% (26%)

  *Direct and Indirect subsidiaries of Welspun Energy Limited  (an associate company): Welspun Energy 
Madhya Pradesh Limited, Welspun Energy Anuppur Private Limited, Welspun Energy UP Private 
Limited, Welspun Urja India Limited, Welspun Energy Chha�sgarh Limited, Welspun Renewable Energy 
Limited, Welspun Urja Gujarat Private Limited, Welspun Energy Meghalaya Private Limited, Welspun 
Energy Jharkhand Private Limited, Welspun Energy Orissa Private Limited, Welspun Energy Resources 
Private Limited, Welspun Solar Park Private Limited, Welspun Energy Park Private Limited, Welspun 
Solar Tech Private Limited , Welspun Energy Maharashtra Private Limited, Welspun Energy Rajasthan 
Private Limited , Solarsys Renewable Energy Private Limited, Welspun Solar Madhya Pradesh Private 
Limited, Welspun Solar Rajasthan Private Limited, Welspun Solar Punjab Private Limited, Welspun 
Solar UP Private Limited, Welspun Solar AP Private Limited, Unity Power Private Limited, Northwest 
Energy Private Limited, Dreisatz Mysolar24 Private Limited.

 f) Joint Ventures

  The Group has adopted and accounted for interest in the following Joint Ventures in this CFS, using the 
“Propor�onate Consolida�on Method” as per AS 27 issued by ICAI.

Name of the Enterprise Nature of Business
Country of 

Incorpora�on
Extent of 
Holding

Direct Joint Venture

Dahej Infrastructure Private Limited Development of Je�y India 50% (50%)

Indirect Joint Ventures

Held through Welspun Natural Resources 
Private Limited

Adani Welspun Explora�on Limited                          Oil and Gas Explora�on India 35% (35%)

Held through Welspun Infra Projects 
Private Limited

Leighton Welspun Contractors Private 
Limited (w e f  28 April 2011) Infrastructure Development India 35% (NA)

Held through Welspun Projects Limited

Dewas Bhopal Corridor Limited Infrastructure Development India 50% (50%)

Bul MSK Infrastructure Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 50% (50%)

 g) Use of Es�mates

  The prepara�on of Financial Statements requires the management to make es�mates and assump�ons 
that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es disclosure of Con�ngent liabili�es as at the 
date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses of the year. Actual 
results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to such accoun�ng es�mate is recognized 
prospec�vely in current and future periods.

 II. Tangible and intangible assets

 a) Tangible fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisi�on / installa�on (net of Cenvat credit availed) 
net off accumulated deprecia�on, amor�za�on and impairment losses except freehold land which is 
carried at cost. The cost of fixed assets includes cost of acquisi�on, construc�on and installa�on, taxes, 
du�es, freight, other incidental expenses related to the acquisi�on, trial run expenses (net of revenue) 
and borrowing cost incurred during pre opera�onal period.

 b)  Capital Work In Progress comprises cost of fixed assets and related expenses that are not yet ready 
for their intended use at the repor�ng date. In case of a Joint venture related to oil and gas business, 
expenditure related to and incurred during the explora�on period are included under “Capital Work In 
Progress” and in case of discovery, the same will be allocated/ transferred to the respec�ve producing 
proper�es. However, in case there is no discovery, expenditure incurred for the explora�on work will 
be charged to revenue.

 c) Build, Operate and Transfer Project Expenditure  Project Roads pertains to the costs incurred by 
the group for construc�on of roads under the concession agreement entered into between the 
company and the respec�ve Authority. These agreements encompass the construc�on, opera�on and 
maintenance of the highway on a Build, Operate and Transfer basis.

 d)  Intangible assets acquired are measured on ini�al recogni�on at cost. Intangible assets are carried at 
cost less accumulated amor�za�on and impairment loss, if any. 

 e) Goodwill arising out of acquisi�on is amor�zed over a period of three years from the year of acquisi�on. 
No part of goodwill arising on consolida�on is amor�sed.

 III. Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying assets are capitalized as 
part of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

 IV. Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

  At each Balance Sheet date, the Group reviews the carrying amount of fixed assets to determine whether 
there is any indica�on that those assets have suffered impairment loss.  If any such indica�on exists, 
the recoverable amount of the assets is es�mated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss. 
The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and value in use, determined by discoun�ng 
the es�mated future cash flows expected from the con�nuing use of the asset to their present value.

 V. Deprecia�on / Amor�za�on on tangible and intangible assets.

 a)  Deprecia�on on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except for certain Plant and Machinery which are depreciated 
on the basis of es�mated useful lives of 13  15 years. During the year, the company has revised useful 
life of computers and mobile phone (office equipments) to 4 years and 3 years respec�vely.  The rates 
of deprecia�on derived from these es�mated useful lives are higher than those prescribed in Schedule 
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 [Refer note 12 (9)].

 b)  For determining the appropriate rate of deprecia�on on Plant and Machinery, con�nuous process 
plant has been iden�fied on the basis of technical opinion by the Group / Expert.

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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 c)  Intangible assets are amor�zed on a straight line basis over the economic useful life es�mated by the 
management. 

 d) Leasehold improvements are amor�zed over the period of lease. 

 VI. Investments

  Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisi�on, are classified as 
long term and are stated at cost. Provision for diminu�on in value of long term investments is made 
to recognize a decline other than temporary in nature. Current Investments are stated at cost or fair 
value, whichever is lower.

 VII. Revenue Recogni�on

 a)  Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to 
the customers, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of 
date of bill of lading. Gross Sales include excise duty and adjustments for price varia�ons.

 b)  Export benefits: Duty En�tlement Pass Book (DEPB), Focus Market and Focus Product Scheme are 
accounted on accrual basis. Target plus /Duty Free En�tlement Cer�ficate scheme of EXIM policy are 
recognized when u�lized.

 c)  Revenue from Services is recognized when the services are completed.

 d)  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

 e) Interest income is recognized on a �me propor�on basis taking into account outstanding amount and 
the applicable interest rate.

 f) Revenue Recogni�on Infrastructure business

 A) Revenue from Engineering, Procurement and Construc�on (EPC) Contracts

 i)  When the outcome of the construc�on contract can be es�mated reliably contract revenue and contract 
cost associated with the construc�on contract are recognised as revenue and expense respec�vely 
by reference to the stage of comple�on of the contract ac�vity at the repor�ng date. The stage of 
comple�on of the contract is the propor�on that the contract cost incurred for the work performed 
up to the repor�ng date bears to the es�mated total contract cost. An expected loss on a construc�on 
contract is recognised as an expense immediately. 

 ii) Determina�on of revenue under the percentage of comple�on method necessarily involves making 
es�mates by the Company, some of which are of a technical nature, concerning, where relevant,  
the percentages of comple�on, costs to comple�on, the expected revenues from the project/ac�vity 
and the foreseeable losses to comple�on.

 iii)  A varia�on is included in contract revenue when it is probable that the customer will approve the 
varia�on and amount can be measured reliably.

 iv)  A claim is included in contract revenue when nego�a�ons with customer have reached an advance 
stage such that it is probable that the customer will accept the claim and amount can be measured 
reliably.

 v)  Unbilled costs are carried as construc�on work in progress which includes installa�on at sites and 
enabling works and is valued at cost.

 B) Revenue from Toll Collec�on

  Toll revenue from opera�ons of project toll roads is recognised on the basis of actual toll collec�on.

 C) Advances and Progress Payments and Reten�on

 i.  Advances received from customers in respect of contracts are treated as liability.

 ii.  Progress payments received are adjusted against receivables from customers in respect of the contract 
work performed.

 iii. Amount(s) retained by the customers un�l the sa�sfactory comple�on of the contract are recognized 
in the financial statement as receivables.  Where such reten�on has been released by the customers 
against submission of bank guarantee the amount so released is adjusted against receivables from 
the customers and value of Bank guarantees is disclosed as con�ngent liability under bank guarantees 
outstanding.

 VIII. Inventories

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of determining cost for 
various categories of inventories is as follows

 A) Steel Products Business

 i)  Raw Materials, Stores and Spares  Moving weighted average basis.

 ii)  Goods in Process and Finished Goods  Cost of Direct Material, Labour and other manufacturing 
expenses.

 iii) Excise duty liability is included in the valua�on of closing inventory of Finished Goods.

 B) Infrastructure Business

 i)  Raw Materials is valued on First in First out (FIFO) basis. [ Refer Note 1, I (c) ]

 ii)  Contract Work in progress is valued at tender rate having regards to unbilled work, outstanding running 
bills and expected recovery thereof.

 iii) Stores and spares are wri�en off in the year of purchase.

 IX. Foreign Currency Transac�ons

 A) Accoun�ng of Transac�ons

 i)  Foreign exchange transac�ons are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of such 
transac�ons. Current monetary assets and liabili�es are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at 
the repor�ng date. Non monetary items are carried at cost.

 ii)  Gains or losses arising on remi�ance / transla�ons at the year  end are credited / debited to the 
statement of profit and loss except treatment as per amendment to AS 11 effec�ve �ll 31 March 2020 
[Refer Note 31(b)].

 iii) Premium / discount on deriva�ve contracts not rela�ng to firm commitments or highly probable 
forecasted transac�ons and not intended for trading or specula�on purpose is amor�zed as income or 
expense over the life of the contract.
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 B) Transla�on and Exchange Rates

       Financial statements of overseas non integral opera�ons are translated as under:

 i.  Assets and Liabili�es are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at the end of the year. Deprecia�on 
at the same rate at which assets are converted.

 ii. Revenues and expenses at yearly average rates (except inventories at opening / closing rates as the 
case may be). Off Balance Sheet items at year end rates.

 iii. Exchange differences arising on transla�on of non integral foreign opera�ons are accumulated in the 
Foreign Currency Transla�on Reserve un�l the disposal of such opera�ons.

 C) Deriva�ve Instruments and Hedge Accoun�ng

  The Group uses foreign currency forward contracts to hedge its risk associated with foreign currency 
fluctua�ons rela�ng to certain firm commitments and forecasted transac�ons. The Group designates 
these hedging instruments as cash flow hedges and applying the recogni�on and measurement 
principles set out in Accoun�ng Standard 30 “Financial Instruments: Recogni�on and Measurement” 
(AS 30).  The gain or loss on the effec�ve hedges is recorded in “Hedging Reserve Account” un�l the 
transac�on is complete.  The gain or loss is accounted in statement of Profit and Loss upon comple�on 
of the transac�on or when the hedge instrument expires or terminates or ceases to qualify for hedge 
accoun�ng.

 X. Employee Benefits

 a)  Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

 b) Post employment and other long term benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of profit 
and loss of the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at the 
present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial valua�on techniques except in case 
of few overseas subsidiaries,liability for leave encashment and gratuity is provided on es�mated basis. 
Actuarial gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits recognized in 
the statement of profit and loss.In case of three subsidiaries, the liability on account of re�rement 
benefits is provided on es�mated basis.[ Refer Note 1, I (c) (i) ]

 c) Payments to defined contribu�on re�rement benefit schemes are charged as an expense as and when 
they fall due.

 XI. Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme

  In respect of employee stock op�ons granted pursuant to the Company’s Stock Op�on Scheme, the 
intrinsic value of the op�ons (excess of market price of the share over the exercise price of the op�on) 
is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensa�on cost over the ves�ng period.

 XII. Accoun�ng for Taxes on Income

 a)  Current income tax is calculated on the results of individual companies in accordance with local tax 
regula�ons.

 b) Deferred tax is recognized subject to considera�on of prudence, on �ming difference, being the 
difference between taxable income and accoun�ng income that originate in one period and are 
capable of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and measured using prevailing enacted or 
substan�vely enacted tax rates.

 XIII. Leases

  a) Finance Lease

  Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalised and the corresponding lease liability is recognized 
at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the 
incep�on of the lease. In�al costs directly a�ributable to lease are recognized with the asset under 
lease.        

 b) Opera�ng Lease

  Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effec�vely retained by the lessor 
are classified as opera�ng leases. Lease payments/revenue under opera�ng leases are recognized as 
an expense/income on accrual basis in accordance with the respec�ve lease agreements.

 XIV. Government grants and subsidies  Infrastructure business

  Grants and subsidies from the government are recognized when there is reasonable assurance that 
(a) the Company will comply with the condi�ons a�ached to them, and (b) the grant/subsidy will be 
received.

  When the grant or subsidy relates to revenue, it is recognized as income on a systema�c basis in the 
statement of profit and loss over the periods necessary to match them with the related costs, which 
they are intended to compensate. Where the grant relates to an asset, it is reduced from the cost of 
the asset. Grants which are given as equity support are disclosed as promoter contribu�on under the 
head Capital Reserve.

 XV. Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets

 a) Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed in respect of possible obliga�ons that arise from past events but 
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events. A provision is made when it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to se�le an obliga�on and in respect of which a reliable es�mate can be 
made. Provision is not discounted and is determined based on best es�mate required to se�le the 
obliga�on at the year end date.

 b) Con�ngent Assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

 XVI. Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. Dilu�ve earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the 
weighted average number of equity and dilu�ve equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year, 
except when the results would be an� dilu�ve. 
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 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

2.Share Capital

Authorised

304,000,000 (304,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs  5/  each  1,520 00  1,520 00 

98,000,000 (98,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs  10/  each  980 00  980 00 

Total  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Issued, subscribed and fully paid up 

227,781,035  (204,668,910) Equity Shares of Rs  5/  each fully paid up  1,138 91  1,023 34 

Total  1,138.91  1,023.34 

  a) Reconcilia�on of the number of shares outstanding

2012 2011

Number of 
Equity Shares

Rs. millions
Number of 

Equity Shares
Rs. millions

At the beginning of the year  204,668,910  1,023 34  204,322,410  1,021 61 

 By way of Global Depository Receipts (GDR)  23,026,000  115 13         

 Equity Shares allo�ed on exercise of  
   Employee Stock Op�on  86,125  0 43  346,500  1 73 

Outstanding at the end of the year  227,781,035  1,138.91  204,668,910  1,023.34 

  b) Terms / right a�ached to equity shares

  The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each holder 
of equity shares is en�tled to one vote per share, however the holders of global depository receipts 
(GDR’s) do not have vo�ng rights in respect of shares represented by the GDR’s �ll the shares are held 
by the custodian ( Refer note 2 (e) ). The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the 
approval of the shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.

  In the event of liquida�on of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be en�tled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, a�er distribu�on of preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in 
propor�on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

  c) Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company

Name of Shareholder

2012 2011

Number of 
Equity Shares

%
Number of 

Equity Shares
%

J P Morgan Chase Bank, NA ADR Account 
(Custodian and against which GDR have 
been issued to Insight Solu�ons Limited)  23,026,000  10 11  

Life Insurance Corpora�on of India Limited 
and its Schemes  19,277,980  8 46  

Welspun Wintex Limited  13,336,576  5 85 13,189,576 6 44

Welspun Mercan�le Limited  12,377,701  5 43  12,157,701 5 94

Welspun Fin trade Limited  15,148,340  6 65 14,481,444 7 08

Krishiraj Trading Limited  26,805,403  11 77  25,630,600 12 52

  d) Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme

  In respect of op�ons granted under the Welspun Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme, in accordance 
with the guidelines issued by Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, the value of op�ons (based on 
intrinsic value of the share on the date of the grant of the op�on) is accounted as deferred employee 
compensa�on, which is amor�zed on a straight line basis over the ves�ng period. Employee benefits 
expense include credit of Rs.1.51 million (Rs. 0.56 million) being amor�za�on of deferred employee 
compensa�on.

  During the year, 78,250 equity shares and 7,875 equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up were issued 
at a price of Rs. 80.00 and Rs. 66.75 each respec�vely. Discount allowed aggrega�ng to Rs. 2.27 million 
(Rs. 9.24 million) in respect of shares allo�ed pursuant to the Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme is 
credited to Securi�es Premium as per guidelines of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India.

Granted during 
2006 07

Granted during 
2009 10

Exercise Price Rs  80 00 Rs  66 75

Date of Grant 8 January 2007 20 April 2009

Ves�ng period commences on 8 January 2008 20 April 2010

Op�ons outstanding at the beginning of the year  523,250  40,750 

Op�ons exercised during the year  78,250  7,875 

Op�ons lapsed during the year  69,750     

Op�ons Outstanding as at 31 March 2012  375,250  32,875 

  e) Global Depository Receipts

  During the year, the Company has raised US$ 115.00 million (Equivalent INR 5,180.85 million) by way 
of issue of 23,026,000 equity shares of Rs 5 each fully paid up at a premium of Rs. 220 each (equivalent 
23,026 Non Vo�ng Global Depository Receipts each of US$ 4,994.45 each represen�ng 1000 Equity 
Shares of par value of Rs.5 each). The en�re proceeds have been invested in short term securi�es as at 
31 March 2012.

  f) Compulsorily Conver�ble Debentures (CCD)

  During the year, the Company has raised US$ 178.01 million (Equivalent INR 7,883.75 million) by way of 
issue of  unsecured, compulsorily conver�ble debentures. The CCD holders have an op�on to convert 
the CCD into 35,038,889 equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up at a conversion price of Rs. 225 per 
share at any�me during a period of 18 months from the date of issue of the CCD i.e. on or before 17 
February 2013. If not already fully converted before 17 February 2013, at the expiry of a period of 18 
months from the date of issue of the CCD, the unconverted part of the CCD shall be deemed to be 
automa�cally converted into Equity Shares. The CCD carry a coupon of 5% (Five) annually un�l issue of 
Equity Shares upon conversion of the CCD.
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 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

3. Reserves and Surplus

Capital Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,057 26 1,057 26 

1,057 26 1,057 26

Capital Reserve on Consolida�on 152 90 152 96

Securi�es Premium Account

As per Last Balance Sheet 12,332 32 12,330 99 

Add/(Less) :  Received during the year 5,072 08 25 90 

                        Discount on issue of shares under Employees Stock Op�on Scheme 2 27 9 24 

                        Premium on redemp�on of Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (45 75) (33 80)

                        U�lized towards share issue expenses (108 17)     

17,252 74 12,332 32 

Debenture Redemp�on Reserve 

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,107 14 643 75 

Add: Appropriated during the year 357 14 463 39 

1,464 29 1,107 14 

General Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,631 11 1,266 61 

Add: Appropriated during the year 65 00 364 50 

1,696 11 1,631 11 

Employees Stock Op�ons Outstanding 10 77 14 90 

Less : Deferred employee compensa�on     (0 35)

10 77 14 55 

Hedging Reserve Account [ Refer Note 31, (C) ] (178 18) (54 29)

Foreign Currency Transla�on Reserve 363 88 4 87 

Surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss

as per last balance sheet 16,466 07 11,439 75 

Profit for the year 2,385 43 6,330 25 

Less: Appropria�ons

General Reserve 65 00 364 50

Debenture Redemp�on Reserve 357 14 463 39

Proposed Dividend on Equity Shares 113 89 409 34

Tax on Proposed Dividend 18 48 66 40

Dividend on Equity Shares of earlier year     0 25

Tax on Dividend     0 04

Total Appropria�ons 554 51 1,303 93

Net Surplus in the Statement of Profit and Loss 18,296 99 16,466 07 

Total 40,116.76 32,711.99 

 (Rs. in million) 

Non  Current Current

2012 2011 2012 2011

4. Long Term Borrowings

Secured

Redeemable Non Conver�ble Debentures  10,000 00  11,700 00  1,700 00     

Non conver�ble Bonds  City of Li�le  
Rocks, Arkansas, Series 2007 A  472 71  431 75  19 76  16 43 

External commercial Borrowings  5,174 13  6,789 68  2,577 38     

Term Loans from Banks  13,074 15  5,029 76  1,606 00  1,090 95 

Unsecured

Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds  7,631 25  6,689 25         

Term Loans from Banks  88 08             

Finance  lease obliga�ons      0 59      2 44 

Inter corporate Deposit  2,690 72  1,929 35         

Deferred Sales Tax  Loan  583 17  50 08  16 69  16 69 

Total  39,714.21  32,620.46  5,919.83 1,126.50 

a) Redeemable non conver�ble debentures

Number of debentures Face value (Rs.) Redemp�on date
Rate of interest 

(p.a.)
Amount  

(Rs. in million)

1250 1,000,000 28 Nov 12 10 50%  1,250 

450 1,000,000 30 Dec 12 10 40% 450

5000 1,000,000 3 Aug 25 9 55%  5,000 

5000 1,000,000 28 Sep 25 9 55%  5,000 

Total  11,700 

b) External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) comprises of USD 140 mil ion (USD 140 mil ion) and JPY 1015 20 mil ion  
      (JPY 1015 20 million)  The loan carries Interest of LIBOR plus 1 25%  

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

c) Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (FCCB)

i) During the financial year 2009  2010, the Company had raised US$ 150 million (Equivalent INR 6,942 million) by way of issue 
of 1500 4 5% Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (FCCB) of US$ 100,000 each  The Bondholders have an op�on to convert these 
bonds into 24,010,000 equity shares of Rs  5 each fully paid up at an ini�al conversion price of Rs  300 per share with a fixed rate 
of exchange on conversion of Rs 48 02 = US$ 1 at any �me on or a�er 26 November 2009 un�l 10 days prior to Maturity date 
(i e  17 October 2014)  Unless previously converted, redeemed or repurchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed on 
17 October 2014 at 102 8028% of the principal amount so as to give a gross yield of 5% per annum (calculated on semi annual 
basis) to the Bondholders      
The Company has an op�on to redeem the Bonds at their Early Redemp�on Amount upon occurrence of events specified in the 
Offering Circular for issue of the Bonds (“Offering Circular”)  Further, the Company has an op�on to mandatorily convert the 
Bonds a�er three years as specified in the Offering Circular

ii) Premium payable on redemp�on of FCCB aggrega�ng to Rs  45 75 Million (Rs  33 80 million) has been adjusted against 
securi�es premium  as per Sec�on 78 of the Companies Act, 1956  In the event, Bond holders exercise the conversion op�on, 

  Date of repayment USD  (million) Amount  JPY (million) Amount 
   (Rs. in million)  (Rs. in million)

  6 April 2012 46 55 2,368 23 337 55 209 14

  6 April 2013 46 55 2,368 23 337 55 209 14

  6 April 2014 46 90 2,386 04 340 10 210 72

The loan is repayable as follows:
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 (Rs. in million)

2012 2011

5. Deferred Tax Liability (Net)

Deferred Tax Liabili�es

Fiscal allowance on fixed assets  6,198 06  4,829 65 

Others  104 79  (21 25)

 6,302 84  4,808 40 

Deferred Tax Assets

Employee Benefits  16 79  15 70 

Other Disallowances  651 41  448 63 

Unabsorbed fiscal allowances  664 51     

 1,332 72  464 32 

Total  4,970.13  4,344.08 

6. Other Long Term Liabili�es

Liability towards claims  2,417 44  1,561 60 

Trade advances and deposits  987 95  257 46 

Total  3,405.39  1,819.06 

7. Long Term Provisions

Employee benefits  149 04  67 20 

Premium payable on redemp�on of FCCB  95 18  49 43 

Total  244.22  116.63 

8. Short Term Borrowings

Secured

Working Capital From Banks

  Foreign currency   992 06     

  Rupee  2,460 85  2,355 72 

Short term loan from banks

  Foreign currency   1,119 25  1,962 18 

Short term loan from other par�es  1,200 90     

(Secured against pledge of bonds of Rs 1,200 90 million held as current investment)

Unsecured

Short term Loans from Banks  2,000 21     

Other loans      4 90 

Total  7,773.27  4,322.81 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

9. Trade Payables

 Acceptances  23,879 69  10,606 76 

 Others  9,043 32  5,244 94 

Total  32,923.01  15,851.70

10. Other Current Liabili�es

Current maturi�es of long term borrowings (Refer note 4)  5,919 83  1,124 06 

Current maturi�es of finance lease obliga�on (Refer note 4)      2 44 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  906 56  390 22 

Unclaimed Dividend  5 20  4 27 

Share Applica�on Money pending allotment  52 45     

Other payables

Creditors for 

  Capital goods  175 54  194 73 

  Expenses  1,183 75  2,374 90 

Trade advances and deposits  5,438 49  7,248 93 

Statutory dues  804 38  684 75 

Liability towards claims  254 38  445 95 

Others  144 65  164 75 

Total  14,885.24  12,635.00 

11. Short Term Provisions

Employee benefits  52 08  44 91 

Others for

Proposed equity dividend  113 89  409 34 

Tax on proposed equity dividend  18 48  66 40 

Li�ga�on  92 65  103 68 

Liquidated Damages  572 07  482 56 

Mark to Market losses on deriva�ve Contracts  547 00  266 59 

Taxa�on (Net)  344 44  591 46 

Total  1,740.61  1,964.95

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements

the amount of premium u�lized from securi�es premium will be suitably adjusted in respec�ve years

iii) Part of the net proceeds received from the issue of FCCB has been u�lized as per objects of the issue viz funding of Plate and 
Coil Mill, Pipe Mill Capex Projects (Anjar and Mandya) and Investment in overseas subsidiary  Pending u�liza�on, the balance 
issue proceeds of USD 17 04 million equivalent INR 866 91 mi lion (USD 77 41 million  equivalent INR 3,452 28 million) have 
been invested in short term deposits/current account with a Bank abroad and Rs  1 46 million (Rs  2 8 million) lying in current 
account with a Bank in India    
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 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

13. Non current investments

(Valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

A. Trade investments  unquoted

Associates

Red Lebondal Limited (Extent of holding  25%)

450 (450) Equity Shares of Euro 1 each  0 03  0 03 

Less: Share of accumulated loss  (3 04)  (0 03)

Add : Share of Profit for the year  3 18     

Welspun Energy Limited (Extent of holding  26%)

17,515,300 (273,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each  262 74  2 73 

Less: Share of accumulated loss  (2 73)  (0 01)

Add: Share of Profit/(Loss) for the year  11 20  (2 72)

Investment in Joint Ventures  13 82     

B. Other investments

i) Quoted

Welspun Investments and Commercials Limited * [ Rs  484 (Rs  484)]  0 00  0 00 

 5 (5) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each

Welspun Global Brands Limited * [Rs  459 (Rs  459)]  0 00  0 00 

10 (10) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each

Standard Chartered Bank PLC IDR #  34 77  34 77 

334,331 (334,331) IDR of Rs  100 each)

Na�onal Minerals Development Corpora�on Limited #  29 91     

100,000 (Nil) Equity Share of Rs  10 each 

Corpora�on Bank  0 13  0 13 

1,600 (1,600)  Equity Shares of Rs  10 each 

ii) Unquoted

Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited  0 05  0 05 

5,000 (5,000) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each 

Welspun Enterprises (Cyprus) Limited  0 77  0 77 

11,800 (11,800) Equity Shares of Euro 1 each 

       Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

Sarv Shak� Synthe�cs Limited  0 02  0 02 

1,500 (1,500) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each 

Myraj Consultancy Limited  0 30  0 30 

30,000  (30,000) Equity Shares  of Rs  10 each 

MSK Finance Limited  0 05  0 05 

500  (500) Equity Shares  of Rs  100 each 

Nutan Nagrik Sahakari Bank Limited * [ Rs  4800 (4800) ]  0 00  0 00 

48  (48) Equity Shares  of Rs  100 each 

Baroda Peoples Co opera�ve Bank Limited  0 38  0 38 

37,652  (37,652) Equity Shares  of Rs  10 each 

Baroda City Co opera�ve Bank Limited * [ Rs  3150 (3150) ]  0 00  0 00 

63  (63) Equity Shares  of Rs  50 each 

Classic Organisors Private Limited  0 01  0 01 

1,000  (1,000) Equity Shares  of Rs  10 each 

Sindh Mercan�le Co opera�ve Bank Limited  0 01  0 01 

960  (960) Equity Shares  of Rs  10 each 

Worli Realty Private Limited      0 06 

(Nil) 6,000 8% Redeemable Preference Shares of Rs  10 each

Minar Trading Services Limited  0 07     

7,400 (7,400) Equity shares  of Rs  10 each

Less: Provision for diminu�on in the value  (0 07)     

Investment in Government Securi�es

Indira Vikas Patra * [ Rs  500 (500) ]  0 00  0 00 

Three (Two) Bonds of Rs  10,00,000 Sardar Sarovar Narmada Nigam Limited  3 00  2 00 

Na�onal Saving cer�ficate  0 02  0 02 

Total  354.62  38.57 

(All the above shares and securi�es are fully paid up)

* Denotes figures less than Rs 10,000

# Diminu�on in value of Long Term Investment of Rs 17 14 million is not provided 
for, considering the same to be temporary in nature

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments  64 81  34 90 

Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments 289 81  3 67 

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments  48 22  38 62 

 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

14. Long term loans and advances

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

 Capital advances  1,975 80  1,205 17 

 Less: Provision for doub�ul advances  2 14  2 10 

 1,973 66  1,203 07 

 Deposits  721 59  609 39 

 Less: Provision for doub�ul deposits  9 43  6 60 

 712 16  602 79 

Loans and Advances to related par�es

Share Applica�on Money  894 76  482 46 

Other Loans and Advances  356 49  26 86 

 1,251 25  509 33 

Other Loans and Advances 

 Advances recoverable in cash or Kind  698 35  517 08 

 Balances with government authori�es

  Direct tax (net)  413 28  97 45 

  Indirect tax  6 40     

 Prepaid expense  5 07  5 79 

 Loan to employees  0 36  0 51 

 1,123 45  620 83 

Total  5,060.53  2,936.01 

15. Other Non Current Assets

 (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Long term trade receivables (including trade receivables on deferred credit terms)  256 04     

Interest receivable  2 72  1 55 

Margin money deposits  21 93  23 38 

Receivable towards claim  76 31     

Others  0 06  0 44 

Total  357.06  25.37 

16. Current investments

(Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

Quoted

i) Bonds

10 05% Air India Limited Bonds 2031  2,978 23     

2,786 (N l) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

8 71% Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  267 70     

2,674,500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 97% Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  20 03     

200,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 79% Government of India Loan 2021  624 57     

6,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 15% Government of India Loan 2024  570 99     

 5,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

8 97% Government of India Loan 2030  1,660 99     

16,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 30% Government of India Loan 2040  616 98     

6,350,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 83% Government of India Loan 2041  2,229 06     

21,600,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 78% Gujarat State Development Loan 2021  10 00     

100,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 23% Gujarat State Development Loan 2021  252 60     

 2,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 25% IDBI Bank Limited  16 91     

17 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2031  114 72     

 26,104 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2032  77 47     

15,650 (N l) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2034  170 50     

41,470 (N l) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2035  14 51     

4,795 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2036  5 70     

2,190 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2037  44 41     

14,840 (N l) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 65% Krishna Bhagya Jala Nigam Limited 2022  730 00     

730 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 48% LIC Housing Finance Limited 2013  49 57     

50 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 73% Madhya Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  151 61     

1,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 99% Madhya Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  5 06     

50,500 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 79% Maharashtra State Development Loan 2021  250 35     

2,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 42% Na�onal Fer�lizers Limited 2016  100 00     

100 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 20% Na�onal Highways Authority of India 2022  144 48     

141,565 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000 each

8 30% Na�onal Highway Authority of India 2027  81 77     

79,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  1,000 each

9 00% NTPC Limited 2027  45 40     

227 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  200,000 each

9 35% Power Grid Corpora�on of India Limited 2018  100 60     

100 (Nil)Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 25% Power Grid Corpora�on of India Limited 2018  1,121 95     

896 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,250,000 each

9 70% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2018  50 98     

 50 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 36% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021  549 47     

550 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 45% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2026  194 71     

195 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 46% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2026  600 82     

595 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 61% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021  495 00     

500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 80% Pondicherry State Development Loan 2022  80 01     

 8,00,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 38% Rural Electr fica�on Corpora�on Limited 2016  108 50     

 108 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 48% Rural Electr fica�on Corpora�on Limited 2021  896 10     

 887 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 75% Rural Electr fica�on Corpora�on Limited 2021  100 00     

 100 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 02% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2021  101 24     

 1,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 23% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2021  101 53     

 1,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 85% SBI Cards and Payments Services Limited  400 00     

 400 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

11 40% SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited  500 00     

 500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

10 20% Tourism Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2021  54 00     

54 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

11 80% TATA Iron and Steel Company Perpetual Bonds  531 25     

500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 71% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2022  356 18     

3,554,500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 72% Tamil Nadu State Development Loan 2022  130 06     

1,300,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 02% U�ar Pradesh State Development Loan 2021  200 90     

2,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

8 81% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  250 33     

2,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 04% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  50 16     

 500,000 (N l) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 28% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  101 93     

 1,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

10 85%  West Bengal State Electricity Distribu�on Company Limited 2026  69 06     

 69 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2038  134 90  123 05 

41,470 (41,470) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

8 60% LIC Housing Finance Limited 2020  4 13  4 00 

4 (4) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 70% Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2030  374 29  249 26 

362 (242) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 34% West Bengal State Electricity Distribu�on Company Limited 2025      1,454 98 

Nil (1,411) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

8 90% Tourism Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2020      30 06 

Nil (30) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 95% Allahabad Bank Limited 2011      244 18 

Nil (2,500) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

10% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2017      358 55 

Nil (3,550) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

10 40% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2020      220 30 

Nil (2,190) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

11% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021      698 78 

Nil (7,500) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

5 85% Gas Authority of India Limited 2013      1 88 

Nil (2) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 98% Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2030      57 26 

Nil (56) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 80% ICICI Bank Limited 2013      1 01 

Nil (100) Bonds of Rs 10,000 each

9 40% Oriental Bank Of Commerce Limited      35 38 

Nil (35) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

11% Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited 2020      771 53 

Nil (750) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 95% State Bank of India Limited 2026      1,034 48 

Nil (99,900) Bonds of Rs 10,000 each

ii) In Cer�ficate of Deposits

UCO Bank Limited 2012  243 91     

 2,500 (Nil) units of Rs  100,000 each 

Allahabad Bank Limited 2012  244 43     

2,500 (Nil) units of Rs  100,000 each

Allahabad Bank Limited 2011      976 35 

Nil (10,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Bank of India Limited 2011      490 67 

Nil (5,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Bank of India Limited 2012      227 27 

Nil (2,500) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Central Bank of India Limited 2011      1,956 01 

Nil (20,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Punjab & Sind Bank Limited 2011      479 20 

Nil (5,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Punjab Na�onal Bank Limited 2011      1,030 93 

Nil (10,500) Units of Rs 100,000 each

UCO Bank Limited 2011      2,446 07 

Nil (25,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Central Bank of India      146 59 

Nil (1,500) Units of Rs  100,000 each

Punjab Na�onal Bank      147 43 

Nil (1,500) Units of Rs  100,000 each

In Debentures / Bonds  Quoted

9 70% IFCI Limited Bonds 2030      183 34 

Nil (178) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 65% IDBI Bank Limited Bonds 2030      514 90 

Nil (500) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 34% West Bengal State Electricity Distribu�on Company Limited Bonds 2025      263 79 

Nil (257) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 25%  Power Grid Corpora�on of India Limited 2017   50 64     

40 (Nil) Bonds  of Rs  1,250,000  each fully paid up

10% Dewan Housing Finance Corp Limited Non Conver�ble Debentures 2015      127 80 

Nil (1,260) Non Conver�ble Debentures of Rs  100,000 each

10 40% Dewan Housing Finance Corp Limited Non Conver�ble Debentures 2020      59 86 

Nil (590) Non Conver�ble Debentures of Rs  100,000 each

Investment in Mutual Funds  Unquoted      31 55 

Total  19,430.62  14,366.43 

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments 19,430 62 14,334 88

Aggregate Book Value of Unquoted Investments   31 55

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments 19,702 14 14,403 13

17. Inventories 

(As taken, valued and cer�fied by management)

Raw materials [includes Goods in transit Rs  2,775 64 million (Rs  3633 54 m llion)]  13,377 51  9,923 49 

Work/Goods in process  1,833 10  1,197 02 

Finished goods  8,527 48  5,835 24 

Stores and spares  2,088 57  1,522 76 

Total  25,826.65  18,478.51 

18.Trade Receivables 

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Over Six Months

Considered good  1,970 57  804 32 

Considered doub�ul  91 51  50 57 

Others

Considered good  13,289 35  12,088 50 

Considered doub�ul  8 01  33 65 

 15,359 44  12,977 04 

Less : Provision for doub�ul debts  99 52  84 22 

Total  15,259.93  12,892.82 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

19. Cash and Bank Balances

Cash and Cash Equivalents

Balances with Banks :

 Current Accounts * 6,676 79 1,969 08

 Unclaimed Dividend Accounts 5 20 4 27

 Deposits having original maturity period of less than three months 1,877 80 3,195 89

Cheques on hand 36 20 55 99

Cash on hand 18 42 13 14

Other Bank Balances :

Deposits having original maturity period of more than three months but less than 
twelve months 687 35 741 30

Deposits having original maturity period of more than twelve months 0 18 535 08

Margin money deposits 837 01 893 74

Balances with escrow account/restricted cash in banks 116 43 100 00

Total  10,255.37  7,508.49 

* Includes Rs  25 56 mil ion (Rs  29 51 million) being balance in Debt Service Reserve Account,  
   not available for use by the company

20. Short term loans and advances

       (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Deposits  139 02  66 56 

Inter corporate deposits  350 00     

Other loans and advances

Advances recoverable in cash or kind  1,868 91  532 95 

Balance with government authori�es

  Direct tax (net)  11 39  4 22 

  Indirect tax  3,482 14  2,317 42 

Prepaid expense  114 38  85 25 

Loan and advances to employees  42 14  26 37 

 5,518 96  2,966 22 

Less: Provision for doub�ul advances  198 48  114 48 

Total  5,809.50  2,918.30 

21. Other Current Assets

Interest accrued on

 Current Investments 695 54 181 40

 Fixed Deposits 45 79 67 18

 Others 19 54 41 60

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Receivable towards claim 76 31     

Export benefits receivable 245 88 508 71

Assets held for disposal 9 61 8 46

Unbilled work in progress 920 33     

Unamor�zed ancillary borrowing costs 25 03 23 42

Total  2,038.03  830.78 

22. Revenue from opera�ons

Revenue from opera�ons

Sale of products  80,067 25  77,105 33 

Sale of services 479 40  430 53 

Civil contracts  7,789 97  1,263 89 

Toll collec�on  693 81  426 66 

Other opera�ng revenues (Refer Note 41)  4,416 89  3,621 41 

Revenue from opera�ons (gross) 93,447.32  82,847.82 

Less: Excise duty 3,681 56  2,627 07 

Revenue from opera�ons (net)  89,765.76  80,220.75 

23. Other income

Interest from

 Current investments  746 92  448 14 

 Fixed deposits  330 30  197 41 

 Others  262 05  205 18 

Dividend Income  445 11  107 12 

Profit on sale of Investments  239 87  16 43 

Profit on Sale of Assets  0 10     

Gas Transporta�on Refund  133 14     

Miscellaneous Income  518 35  165 17 

Total  2,675.84  1,139.45 

24. Cost of material consumed

Inventory at the beginning of the year  6,289 95  5,762 43 

Add: On acquisi�ons  3,148 66  68 65 

Purchases (net)  62,410 64  48,438 21 

 71,849 25  54,269 29 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year 10,601 87 6,289 95

 61,247 38  47,979 34 

Total  61,247.38  47,979.34 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

25. Purchases of traded goods

Purchases of traded goods  378 37  457 60 

Total  378.37  457.60 

26. Changes in inventories of finished goods, work/goods in process

Inventories at the end of the year

Work / Goods in process  1,833 10  1,197 02 

Finished Goods  8,527 48  5,835 24 

 10,360 58  7,032 26 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Work / Goods in process  1,197 02  1,476 84 

Finished Goods  5,835 24  3,071 06 

Add: On Acquisi�on  613 67  4,100 08 

 7,645 93  8,647 98 

 (2,714 65)  1,615 72 

Total  (2,714.65)  1,615.72 

27.Employee benefits expenses

Salaries, wages and Bonus  4,508 41  3,687 09 

Contr bu�on to Provident and other funds  130 20  119 33 

Employee compensa�on expenses  (1 51)  (0 56)

Staff Welfare expenses  238 59  102 92 

 Total  4,875.68  3,908.78 

28.Other expenses

Store and Spares consumed  2,375 99  1,692 52 

Coa�ng and Other Job charges  1,440 32  572 71 

Power, Fuel and Water charges  1,923 68  1,420 53 

Freight, Material Handling and Transporta�on  3,504 95  4,464 14 

Excise duty on (increase)/decrease on stock  (9 25)  54 98 

Construc�on Cost

  Sub contract costs  1,234 42  375 25 

  Plant hire costs  560 70     

  Tools and equipment  80 61     

  Temporary site installa�ons  160 14     

  Labour charges  170 97     

Rent  397 43  330 79 

Rates and Taxes  689 62  216 60 

Repairs and Maintenance

  Plant and machinery  342 89  228 23 

  Buildings  48 10  28 17 

  Others  169 21  81 63 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Travelling and Conveyance expenses  370 26  317 64 

Communica�on expenses  40 15  33 73 

Professional and Consultancy fees  540 81  544 68 

Insurance  242 71  164 46 

Directors' si�ng fees  1 11  0 65 

Prin�ng and Sta�onery  32 78  26 84 

Security charges  34 66  33 54 

Membership and Subscrip�on  19 37  27 18 

Vehicle expenses  20 34  18 14 

Exchange difference (net)  1,247 66  378 20 

Loss on sale / discard of fixed assets  12 12  19 33 

Auditors remunera�on  7 36  6 71 

Product Compensa�on and Claims (Refer note 35)  649 39  2,007 55 

Sales promo�on expenses  50 25  39 75 

Liquidated damages  192 97     

Commission and discounts on sales  426 64  350 24 

Provision for doub�ul debts and advances (net)  96 68  8 61 

Bad debts and advances wri�en off  1 46  (61 84)

Miscellaneous expenses  331 93  233 74 

 Total  17,408.42  13,614.72 

29.Finance costs

Interest on

 Term Loans  1,157 19  579 34 

 Debentures / Bonds  1,602 62  1,117 29 

 Working Capital  268 65  38 04 

 Others  43 41  156 58 

Other borrowing costs  657 72  347 42 

Exchange difference (Net)  269 64  1 61 

Total  3,999.24  2,240.27 
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Note 30 Infratech Business  Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) Assets

 1) The Group has undertaken various projects on Build, Operate and Transfer  BOT basis as per concession 
agreements with the Government authori�es. In respect of Build, Operate and Transfer BOT projects, 
the construc�on costs including interest incurred during the year has been recognized as an intangible 
asset, in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard (AS 26) “Intangible Assets”.  The details of BOT Assets 
are as under :

(Rs. in million)

Build, Operate and  
Transfer BOT Project

Contract Ownership
Concessional 

Period

Amor�za�on

2012 2011*

Jalandhar Bus Terminal Project
Punjab Infrastructure 
Development Board 

8 Years, 5 Months 
and 2 days 

 24 14  14 04 

Ludhiana Bus Terminal Project
Punjab Infrastructure 
Development Board

10 Years, 3 
Months      

 17 92  8 65 

Hoshangabad Harda 
Khandwa Road Project

Madhya Pradesh Road 
Development Authority

15 years  24 02  20 23 

Raisen Rahatgarh Road Project
Madhya Pradesh Road 
Development Authority

15 years  17 35  6 28 

Dewas Water Supply Project
Madya Pradesh State Industrial 
Development Corpora�on

32 Years                     -     (7 69)

Kim Mandvi Corridor Project
Gujarat State Road Development 
Corpora�on Limited

20 Years                     9 83  10 70 

Himmatnagar bypass Project
Gujarat State Road Development 
Corpora�on

15 years  6 72  2 68 

Dewas Bhopal Corridor Project
Madhya Pradesh Road 
Development Authority

25 Years  
 41 71  21 97 

Kon Sawle Turade Road Project
Public Works Department, 
Maharashtra

15 Years                        7 15  3 45 

  *Post acquisi�on, w.e.f. 16 August 2010.

 2) Cash Subsidy of Rs.1,265.38 million received from Madhya Pradesh Rajya Setu Nirman Nigam Limited, 
and Gujarat State Road Development Corpora�on for the Build, Operate and Transfer (BOT) Projects, 
shown as “Capital  Reserve” in the financial statements of a subsidiary (which is a ma�er of audit 
qualifica�on in its Audit Report) has been directly adjusted in the consolidated financial statements 
by deduc�ng the same from Project Cost as required by AS 12 “Accoun�ng for Government Grants”. 
However, this adjustment has no effect on the profit for the year.

Note 31 Foreign Exchange Differences

 a) Loss on account of difference in foreign exchange on realignment/realiza�on and on cancella�on of 
deriva�ve instruments amoun�ng to Rs. 1,247.66 million (Rs. 378.20 million) and Rs  269.64 million 
(Rs. 1.61 million) is accounted in other expenses and finance costs respec�vely other than (b) below.

 b) The Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules 2009 has amended the provision of AS 11 
related  to “The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” vide no�fica�on dated March 31, 2009 
(as amended on 11 May 2011 and 29 December 2011) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
Accordingly, the Company has adjusted exchange difference loss amoun�ng to Rs. 695.83 million  

(Rs. 8.84 million) to the cost of fixed assets and capital work in progress and exchange difference 
loss of Rs. 612.53 million (Gain of Rs. 130.28 million) is transferred to “Foreign Currency 
Monetary Item Transla�on Difference Account” to be amor�zed over the balance period of such 
long term liabili�es but not beyond  31 March 2015. Out of the above, loss of Rs. 289.56 million  
(Gain of Rs. 65.14 millionhas been adjusted in the current year and loss of Rs. 322.97 million  
(Gain of Rs. 65.14 million) has been carried over.

 c) The Group has early adopted AS 30 and accordingly loss of Rs. 178.18 million (Rs. 54.29 million) related 
to foreign exchange difference on Cash Flow Hedges for certain firm commitments and forecasted 
transac�ons is recognized in Shareholders’ Funds and shown as Hedging Reserve Account.

Note 32

 a) Finance Lease

  Long term leases, which in economic terms cons�tute investments financed on a long term basis 
(finance lease) are recognized as assets and recorded at their cash purchase value. The ini�al tenure 
is three years. The minimum lease payments required under this finance lease that have ini�ally or 
remaining non cancellable lease terms in excess of one year as at 31 March 2012 and its present value 
are as follows :

 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

Minimum Lease payments as at

Not Later than one year     3.12

Total     3.12

Less: Amount represen�ng interest     0.09

Present Value of Minimum lease payment     3.03

Less: Amount due not later than one year     3.03

 b) Opera�ng Lease

  i) The Group leases office, residen�al facili�es, equipment etc. under opera�ng lease agreements 
that are renewable on a periodic basis at the op�on of both the lessor and the lessee. The ini�al 
tenure of lease is generally for eleven months.

 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

Lease rental charges for the year 397.43 330.79

Future lease rental obliga�ons payable (under non cancellable leases)

Not later than one year 138.55 134.42

Later than one year but not later than five years 394.83 451.81

Later than five years 5.34 12.94

  ii) In case of subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing of sponge iron provides mini bulk carriers and 
barges on hire basis regularly. Income from hire charges is Rs. 77.75 million.
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Note 33

 a) Con�ngent Liabili�es not provided for

 (Rs. in million) 

2012 2011

Performance Guarantees/Bid Bond given by banks to company’s customers / 
government authori�es etc  #  25,383 00  22,245 09 

Corporate Guarantees given by the group  4,352 28  3,906 60 

B lls Discounted  886 74     

Le�ers of Credit outstanding (net of liability provided) for company’s sourcing  8,612 76  7,867 83 

Claims against the Group not acknowledged as debts  539 39  74 17 

Custom duty on pending export obliga�on against import of Raw Materials 
and Machineries  961 18  313 89 

Disputed Indirect Taxes #  1,191 43  398 30 

# include figures of joint ventures (Refer note 39)

 b) During the year, the Company has received show cause no�ces alleging duty evasion of Rs. 8,609.82 
million on account of wrong classifica�on of imported raw materials. Out of the above, Rs. 6,706.60 
million is cenvatable duty which is revenue neutral and balance Rs. 1,903.22 million is custom duty. 
However, the company does not expect any monetary liability based on the opinion obtained.

 c) In case of a subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing of sponge iron, show cause no�ces amoun�ng 
to Rs. 2,203.03 million are received alleging wrong availment and u�liza�on of input credit on import 
of “Iron ore pellets”. The said subsidiary has replied to all these no�ces and does not expect any 
monetary liability on the basis of opinion obtained.

 d) Capital and other commitments #

 i) Es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on capital account (net of advances) is Rs. 
12,557.84 million (Rs. 2,597.42 million).

 ii) Other long term commitments is Rs. 3,562.26 million (Rs. Nil).

 iii) The Group has commi�ed to provide con�nued financial support to subsidiaries/associates based on 
the requirement from �me to �me.

 iv) In case of subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing of sponge iron, long term contract for purchase of 
raw materials to ensure uninterrupted supply of raw material, however does not have any financial 
commitment.

  # include figures of joint ventures (Refer note 39)

Note 34 Taxa�on

 i) Current income tax is calculated on the results of individual companies in accordance with local tax 
regula�ons.

 ii) In case of a subsidiary engaged in the manufacturing of sponge iron, there was Search and Seizure 
ac�on by Income Tax Department on 13 October 2010. Later, on the basis of records enquiries from 
officers/staff, the said subsidiary through affidavit of directors retracted its declara�ons u/s 132(4) of 

the Income Tax Act, 1961 pertaining to income of Rs. 320 million for the financial year ended 31 March 
2010 and of Rs. 50 million of capital expenses. Hence the relevant declara�on u/s 132 (4) of income 
was not given effect in its books of account. However, the tax paid based on its returns of income filed 
in pursuance of search ac�on is provided.

Note 35 Product Compensa�on and Claims

  During the year, the Group arrived at an out of court se�lement of USD 30 million with one of its 
customer who has ini�ated counter legal ac�on against the Group in the United States of America 
claiming loss / damages on account of defects in the pipes supplied. 

  As per the se�lement terms, USD 10 million will be paid within 12 months (in two equal installments) 
and balance USD 20 million will be adjusted from poten�al business from the said customer. In case 
customer fails to give business to Group, then the se�lement amount will be restricted to USD 22.50 
million. The Group has accordingly provided the quality claim of USD 22.50 million in these accounts 
and reported USD 7.50 million as con�ngent liabili�es.

  Further, the Group has also entered into an out of court se�lement of USD 10 million with one of 
its steel supplier against which the Group has ini�ated legal ac�on in the court  at United States of 
America. As per the se�lement terms, the Group has received USD 7 million from the said steel supplier 
and balance USD 3 million will be received within 24 months (in two equal installments). The Group 
has accordingly accounted for USD 10 million in these accounts.

Note 36 Segment Repor�ng

  The Group follows AS 17  Segment Repor�ng rela�ng to the repor�ng of financial and descrip�ve 
informa�on about their opera�ng segments in financial statements.

  The Group’s reportable opera�ng segments have been determined in accordance with the internal  
management    structure    which is    organized   based   on    the   opera�ng   business   segments as   described   below :

  Steel Products which principally consist of manufacture and sale of steel pipes, plates and coils and 
Gas based Sponge Iron (Direct Reduced Iron  DRI and Hot Brique�ed Iron  HBI).

  Infrastructure comprises development, opera�ons and maintenance basic infrastructure projects,  
toll collec�on, development of urban infrastructure and providing related advisory services.

  Others include Oil and Gas, Energy business and development of Je�y Project.
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a) Primary Segments (business segments)

(Rs. in million)

2012 2012 2012 2012

Steel Products Infrastructure Others Total

Net Sales/Income from opera�ons 

Segment Revenue  80,847 97  8,969 95 89,817 92 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue 52 16 52 16 

Total External Revenue  80,795 81  8,969 95 89,765.76 

Segment Results  4,299 88  762 18  (6 73) 5,055.33 

Finance Costs 3,999 24 

Unallocated Income net of Unallocated 
(expenditure) 2675 84

Profit before Tax (PBT) 3,731.92

Tax expense 1502 77

Profit a�er Taxes (PAT) before minority interest 
and share of profit / (Loss) from associates 2,229.15 

Share of profit/ (loss) from associates 14 38 

Minority Interest 141 90 

Profit a�er Tax (PAT) 2,385.43 

Other Informa�on

Segment Assets  108,321 57  16,890 92  1,956 60 127,169.09 

Una located Corporate Assets  31,059.13 

Total assets  158,228.22 

Segment Liabili�es  41,369 65  4,424 52  102 20  45,896.37 

Una located Corporate Liabili�es  71,076.19 

Total liabili�es  116,972.56 

Capital Expenditure 
(including Capital Advances)  10,692 74  1,426 82  461 27  12,580.82 

Deprecia�on / Amor�za�on 
(included in segment expenses)  3,130 54 384 66 0 03  3,515.23 

(Rs. in million)

2011 2011 2011 2011

Steel Products Infrastructure Others Total

Net Sales/Income from opera�ons 

Segment Revenue  78,689 09  1,690 55  80,379 64 

Less: Inter Segment Revenue  114 89  44 00  158 89 

Total External Revenue  78,574 20  1,646 55  80,220.75 

Segment Results  10,399 97  57 78  (6 00)  10,451.75 

Finance Costs  2,240 27 

Unallocated Income net of Unallocated 
(expenditure)  892 81 

Profit before Tax (PBT)  9,104.29 

Tax expense 2,871 33

Profit a�er Taxes (PAT) before minority 
interest and share of profit / (Loss) 
from associates  6,232.96 

Share of profit/ (loss) from associates  (2 72)

Minority Interest  100 01 

Profit a�er Tax (PAT)  6,330.25 

Other Informa�on

Segment Assets  78,270 71  7,912 75  1,202 84  87,386.30 

Unallocated Corporate Assets  22,112.42 

Total assets  109,498.72 

Segment Liabili�es  29,017 15  1,136 04  64 86  30,218.05 

Unallocated Corporate Liabili�es  45,545.35 

Total liabili�es  75,763.40 

Capital Expenditure
(including Capital Advances)  9,387 12  2,217 01  193 27  11,797.40 

Deprecia�on / Amor�za�on
(included in segment expenses)  2,294 78  144 66  0 03  2,439.47 

  b) Secondary Segments  Geographical Segments

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

India 
Outside 

India 
Total India

Outside 
India 

Total

Revenue from Opera�ons  43,626 40  46,139 36  89,765 76  27,360 54  52,860 21  80,220 75 

Carrying Amount of Segment 127,667 49  30,560 73 158,228 22  79,785 18  29,713 54 109,498 72 

Capital Expenditure  10,621 59  1,959 24  12,580 82  5,777 36  6,020 04  11,797 40 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements



112 113

Note 37 Related Party Disclosures

 a) List of Par�es where control exists : The list of Subsidiaries is disclosed in Note 1, I (d) above.

 b) Joint Ventures

  The list of joint ventures is disclosed in note 1 I(f) above

 c) Associates

  Red Lebondal Limited and Welspun Energy Limited

 d) Other related par�es with whom transac�ons have taken place during the year and balances 
outstanding as on the last day of the year.

  Welspun India Limited, Welspun Steel Limited, Welspun Retail Limited, Welspun Anjar SEZ Limited, 
Welspun Founda�on for Health and Knowledge, Welspun Syntex Limited, Vipuna Trading Limited, 
Welspun Logis�cs Limited, Welspun Realty Private Limited, Welspun Enterprises (Cyprus) Limited, 
Remi Metals Gujarat Limited, Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited.

  Directors /Key Management Personnel

Name Nature of Rela�onship

B. K. Goenka Execu�ve Chairman

R. R. Mandawewala Director *

Braja Mishra Managing Director **

M. L. Mi�al Execu�ve Director  Finance ^

Asim Chakraborty Whole Time Director #

  * Managing Director upto 26 April 2012 ** appointed w.e.f. 26 April 2012 
  ^ resigned w.e.f. 30 September 2011 # resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 4 October 2011

  Transac�ons with related par�es for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Rs. in million)

Joint 
Venture 

Associates 
Other  

Related 
Par�es 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
 Total 

Sale of Goods, Services and Recoveries  96.50  2.90  3,058.41      3,157.81 

     0 01  1,677 00      1,677 01 

Sale of Fixed Assets          0.48      0.48 

         1 81      1 81 

Other Income          17.98      17.98 

         0 42      0 42 

Purchase of Goods and Services          325.00      325.00 

         448 72      448 72 

Rent and License fees paid          76.12      76.12 

         101 77      101 77 

Dona�ons          22.65      22.65 

         25 33      25 33 

Reimbursement of expenses (net)          51.68      51.68 

     0 05  84 60      84 65 

Directors Remunera�on          33.55  33.55 

         80 44  80 44 

Loans, advances and deposits given          72.91      72.91 

                    

Loans, advances and deposits given repaid                     

         45 08      45 08 

Loans, advances and deposits received          10.29      10.29 

         83 03      83 03 

Loans, advances and deposits received repaid          58.95      58.95 

         25 93      25 93 

Purchase of Equity shares      260.01          260.01 

     2 60  0 05      2 65 

Sale of Equity shares          0.13      0.13 

                    

Share applica�on money given      2,594.77  215.00      2,809.77 

     549 00  130 00      679 00 

Share applica�on money repaid / adjusted      2,003.40  150.78      2,154.18 

     202 60          202 60 

  

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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  Balances with related par�es for the year ended 31 March 2012

(Rs. in million)

Par�culars
Joint 

Venture 
Associates 

Other  
Related 
Par�es 

Key 
Management 

Personnel 
 Total 

Deposits  388.38  388.38 

 428 37  428 37 

Corporate Guarantees given 1470 ^  3,529.30  822.97  5,822.27 

700 ^  3,083 63  822 97  4,606 60 

Investments in Shares  262.77  0.82  263.59 

 2 73  0 82  3 55 

Loans and Advances outstanding  3.24  3.24 

 23 39  23 39 

Share Applica�on money  699.76  195.00  894.76 

 368 40  130 00  498 40 

Trade Receivables  515.34  515.34 

 49 01  49 01 

Trade Payables * [ Rs  1187 (1187) ]  0.00  9.53  9.53 

 0 00  67 39  67 39 

  * Denotes figures less than Rs 10,000.
  ^ Transac�ons with joint venture has been reported at full value.

  Disclosure in respect of transac�ons which are more than 10% of the total transac�ons of the same 
type with related par�es during the year

 I) Sale of Goods and Recoveries  Welspun India Limited Rs. 1,022.46 million (Rs. 745.99 million),  
Welspun Steel Limited Rs. 418.62 million (Rs. 425.46 million), Remi Metals Gujarat Limited 
Rs. 696.65 million (Rs. 310.26 million), Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs.902.32 million 
(Rs. 60.84 million)

 II) Sale of Fixed Assets  Welspun Steel Limited Rs. 0.48 million (Rs. Nil), Remi Metals Gujarat Limited  
Rs. Nil ( Rs. 1.80 million)

 III) Other Income  Remi Metals Gujarat Limited Rs. 17.98 million (Rs. 0.42 million).

 IV) Purchase of Goods and Services  Welspun Steel Limited Rs. 261.96 million (Rs. 388.68 million), 
Welspun Logis�cs Limited Rs. 56.82 million (Rs. 49.23 million)

 V) Rent paid  Welspun Realty Private Limited Rs.67.55 million (Rs. 92.53 million), Vipuna Trading Limited  
Rs. 4.42 million (Rs. 6.63 million)

 VI) Dona�on paid  Welspun Founda�on for Health and Knowledge Rs. 22.65 million (Rs. 25.33 million)  
(meant for corporate social responsibility ac�vi�es).

 VII) Loans, Advances and Deposits given  Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs. 22.76 million  
(Rs. Nil), Welspun Steel Limited Rs. 43.04 million (Rs. Nil).

 VIII) Investment in Equity Shares of  Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 0.05 million), 
Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 260.01 million (Rs. 2.60 million).

 IX) Sale of Investments in Welspun Construc�ons Private Limited Rs. 0.13 million (Rs Nil) to other related 
par�es.

 X) Share Applica�on Money given to Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 2,594.77 million (Rs. 549 million),  
Welspun  Cap�ve  power Genera�on Limited Rs. 215 million (Rs. 130 million). 

 XI) Share  Applica�on  Money given  includes  repaid/adjusted by  Welspun Energy Limited  Rs 2,003.40 million  
(Rs 202.60 million).

 XII) Directors Remunera�on

(Rs. in million)

Name Rela�on 2012 2011

B. K. Goenka Execu�ve Chairman 14.28  57.58 

R. R. Mandawewala Managing Director *  10.00  4.74 

M. L. Mi�al Execu�ve Director Finance**  5.60  11.20 

Asim Chakraborty Whole Time Director #  3.67  6.92 

Total  33.55  80.44 

  * Managing Director upto 26 April 2012 ** Resigned w.e.f. 30 September, 2011
  # Resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 4 October, 2011

 XIII) Reimbursement of Expenses (net)  Welspun India Limited Rs. 42.66 million (Rs. 80.77 million),  
Welspun  Steel  Limited Rs. 7.63 million (Rs. 0.84 million).

 XIV) Loans and Advances, deposit given refunded from Welspun Anjar SEZ Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 45.08 million)

 XV) Advances received from Welspun India Limited Rs. 9 million (Rs. 25 million),Welspun Cap�ve 
Power Genera�on Limited Rs. 1.29 million (Rs. 33.72 million),Welspun Maxsteel Limited  
Rs. Nil (Rs.14.41 million),Welspun Steel Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 9.90 Million).

 XVI) Advances received repaid to Welspun India Limited Rs. 23.95 million (Rs. 6.81 million), 
Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs. 35 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Maxsteel Limited  
Rs. Nil (Rs. 9.22 million), Welspun Steel Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 9.90 Million).

  Closing balances as at 31 March 2012

 I) Loans, Advances and Deposits given  Welspun Realty Private Limited Rs. 320.48 million  
(Rs. 356.48 million), Welspun Logis�cs Limited Rs. 52.40 million (Rs. 52.40 million).

 II) Advances outstanding  Welspun India Limited Rs. 3.24 million (Rs. 18.19 million),Welspun Maxsteel 
Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 5.20 million).

 III) Trade Receivables  Remi Metals Gujarat Limited Rs. 380.49 million (Rs. 6.03 million),  
Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs.119.82 million (Rs. Nil),Welspun Maxsteel Limited  
Rs. Nil (Rs. 14.33 million),Welspun India Limited Rs. 15.04 million (Rs. 28.38 million).

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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 IV) Trade Payables  Welspun Retail Limited Rs. 2.57 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Steel Limited Rs.6.96 million 
(Rs. 26.58 million), Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 40.71 million).

 V) Investments held  Welspun Enterprises (Cyprus) Limited Rs. 0.77 million (Rs. 0.77 million).  
Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 262.74 million (Rs. 2.73 million).

 VI) Share Applica�on Money outstanding  Welspun Energy limited Rs. 699.76 million (Rs.368.40  
million), Welspun Cap�ve power Genera�on Limited Rs. 195 million (Rs. 130 million).

 VII) Guarantees and Collaterals given   Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited Rs. 600 million  
(Rs. 600 million), Welspun Urja Gujarat Private Limited Rs 1,709.30 million (Rs 1,709.30 million), Welspun 
Energy Limited Rs. 1,270 million (Rs. 750 million), Northwest Energy Private Limited Rs 550 million  
(Rs. Nil), Red Lebondal Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 624.33 million), Adani Welspun Explora�on Limited Rs. 1470 
million (Rs. 700 million)

Note 38 Disclosure in accordance with Accoun�ng Standard 7  (Revised) ‘Construc�on Contracts’

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Contract Revenue  26,738 12  12,244 79 

Contract Cost Incurred  22,615 01  9,750 67 

Recognized Profits / Losses  4,640 33  905 51 

Advances Received  883 63  436 45 

Reten�on Money  572 12  435 92 

Gross Amount due from Customers For Contract Work  1,471 92  901 15 

Note 39 The Company has the following joint ventures as on 31 March 2012 and its percentage holding  
is given below :

Name of the Joint Ventures         
Percentage    (%)    Holding

2012 2011

Direct Joint Venture

Dahej Infrastructure Private Limited 50% 50%

Through Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited

Adani Welspun Explora�on Limited 35% 35%

Through Welspun Projects Limited 

Dewas Bhopal Corridor Limited 50% 50%

BUL MSK Infrastructure Private Limited 50% 50%

Through Welspun Infra Projects Limited

Leighton Welspun Contractors Private Limited (w e f   28 April 2011) 35% NA

  The propor�onate share of assets, liabili�es, income, expenditure, con�ngent liabili�es other 
commitments and capital commitments of the joint ventures companies included in the consolidated 
financial statements are given below :

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Assets

Net Block (including Capital work in progress)  4,351 85  3,331 69 

Non Current Investments  13 84  0 02 

Deferred Tax Assets (Net)  82 41  19 03 

Long Term Loans and Advances  684 41  398 16 

Other Non Current Assets  280 71  24 93 

Current Investments      31 55 

Inventories  68 25  53 02 

Trade Receivables  867 24  (93 02)

Cash and Bank Balances  927 69  81 70 

Short Term Loans and Advances  496 30  19 83 

Other Current Assets  920 33     

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Liabili�es

Reserves and Surplus  631 32  356 22 

Long Term Borrowings  1,927 14  1,964 04 

Long Term Provisions  506 19     

Deferred Tax Liabili�es (Net)  1,903 36  0 72 

Short Term Borrowings  815 71  144 90 

Trade Payables  1,706 63  100 17 

Other Current Liab li�es  836 85  21 30 

Short Term Provisions  47 15  7 68 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Revenues  5,963.40  291.82 

Other Income  69 56  0 74 

Cost of Materials Consumed  10 62  0 11 

Employee Benefits Expense  706 32  7 73 

Other Expenses  4,395 23  31 57 

Profit before Finance cost, deprecia�on / amor�za�on and taxes  920.79  253.15 

Finance Cost  313 47  207 60 

Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on  203 36  59 77 

Profit/(Loss) before tax  403.96  (14.22)

Tax expense  128 88  (18 71)

Profit a�er tax  275.09  4.49 

Con�ngent Liab li�es  5,104 64  618 15 

Other Commitments  312 26     

Capital Commitments  76 48  37 26 

Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Consolidated Financial Statements
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Note 40 Earnings Per Share (EPS)

2012 2011

I) Profit computa�on for Basic and Diluted EPS

Profit a�er Tax (Rs  in million) 2,385 43 6,330 25 

Add: Interest on Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (net of tax) (Rs  in million)  149 98  233 98 

Add: Interest on Compulsory Conver�ble Debentures (net of tax) (Rs  in million)  165 61     

Net Profit a�er Diluted EPS (Rs  in mil ion)  2,701 02  6,564 23 

II) Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computa�on

a) For Basic EPS (Nos )  219,028,187  204,549,256 

b) For D luted EPS (Nos )  278,200,370  229,020,787 

III) EPS on Face Value of Rs. 5/  each

Basic (Rs )  10 89  30 95 

Diluted (Rs )  9 71  28 66 

Note 41 Other Opera�ng Revenues

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Scrap sales  1,672 44  1,432 54 

Value added tax incen�ve  670 30  508 15 

Export benefits  483 77  1,321 77 

Excess provisions wri�en back  1,135 91  57 25 

Others  454.46  301.71 

Total  4,416.89  3,621.41 

Note 42 Other current liabili�es include an amount of Rs. 368.75 Million (Rs. 368.75 million) being VAT collected 
on Sales, claiming it within VAT incen�ve limit, not paid. If the claim of the Company is not accepted, 
the amount may have to be paid and/or contested in appeal.

Note 43 In the case of a subsidiary engaged in manufacturing of sponge iron, the produc�on and profitability 
started suffering from May 2011 due to lower availability of gas from the gas supplier.The subsidiary’s 
and group’s profitability may con�nue to affect lower capacity u�lisa�on, cost of produc�on and 
profitability �ll the required gas supply is restored. The special leave pe��on (SLP) filed in the 
Supreme Court of India by the subsidiary along with other affected par�es against the Government 
of India for restora�on of supply of gas. The said SLP has been admi�ed and the subsidiary has made 
representa�on to Ministry of Petroleum and Natural Gas to reinstate the allocated supply of Gas. 
However, management is of the opinion that taking long term view of the ma�er and steps taken, it 
does not iden�fy any impairment of any assets on this account.        

Note 44 Acquisi�ons during the year

 a) Acquisi�on of Welspun Maxsteel Limited (“WMSL”)

  The Company acquired 113,622,058 (87.35%) Equity shares of Welspun Maxsteel Limited at an 
aggregate considera�on of Rs. 8,042.17 million pursuant to Share Purchase and Investment Agreement 
dated 29 June 2011 entered with Insight Solu�ons Limited, Welspun Maxsteel Limited and Welspun 
Steel Limited. Accordingly, WMSL became a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. the date of acquisi�on 
i.e. 13 August 2011. Net assets acquired on acquisi�on is Rs. 2,893.29 million and goodwill arising on 
consolida�on is Rs. 5148.88 million.

 b) Acquisi�on of stake in Leighton Welspun Contractors Private Limited (“LWIN”)

  Welspun Infra Projects Private Limited, a subsidiary of Welspun Infratech Limited has acquired 35% 
equity shares in Leighton Contractors (India) Private Limited (‘LCPL’), (an Indian unit of Leighton 
Holdings) at a total considera�on of Rs. 4,700 million. LCPL was subsequently renamed as Leighton 
Welspun Contractors Private Limited (“LWIN”). Net assets acquired on acquisi�on is Rs. 930.82 million 
and goodwill arising on consolida�on is Rs. 3879.72 million.

 c) Acquisi�on of stake in ARSS Bus Terminal Private Limited (“ARSS”)

  Welspun Infratech Limited (subsidiary of company) has subscribed to 7,772,727 equity shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid up in ARSS Bus Terminal Private Limited (ARSS) for Rs. 77.72 million represen�ng 45% 
of equity shares of ARSS. Net assets acquired on acquisi�on is Rs. 77.22 million and goodwill arising on 
consolida�on is Rs. 0.5 million.

Note 45 Compara�ves

  Schedule VI to the companies Act, 1956 is revised effec�ve from 1 April 2011. This has significantly 
impacted the disclosure and presenta�on made in the financial statements. Previous years figures 
have been regrouped, reclassified wherever necessary to correspond with current year’s classifica�on 
/ disclosures. The CFS is not comparable, in view of subsidiaries incorporated/acquired/divested during 
the current and previous year.

As per our a�ached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari                              Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077

Mumbai, 29 May 2012 Pradeep Joshi
Company Secretary
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(Rs Million)

2012 2011

 Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 1,866.75 (10,324.18)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 7,508 49 17,028 16 

Cash and cash equivalents taken over on acquisi�on of subsidiaries and joint 
venture 

880 13 804 52 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 10,255.37 7,508.49 

Notes :

1. Cash and Cash equivalents at end of year includes unrealised Profit of Rs. 29.11 million (Rs.49.29 million) 
being on account of Current Account/Fixed Deposits in foreign currency. 

2.  Proceeds from equity shares includes Rs. 5,072.68 million (Net of issue expenses of Rs. 108.17 million) 
received from “Global Depository Receipts” (GDR) (Refer note 2 (e) of Notes to Accounts).

3. Cash and Bank balances includes Rs.984.20 million (Rs. 1027.16 million) which is not available for use by  
the Company.

4. Previous year’s figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary.

As per our a�ached report of even date For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari                              Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077

Mumbai, 29 May 2012 Pradeep Joshi
Company Secretary

(Rs Million)

2012 2011

 A)  Cash Flow From Opera�ng Ac�vi�es 

 Profit before tax 3,731.92 9,104.29 

 Adjustments for: 

             Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on expense 3,515 23 2,439 47 

             Interest  expense 3,071 88 1,891 24 

             Interest income (1,339 27) (850 73)

             Loss on sale/discard of fixed assets (net) 12 02 19 36 

             Profit on sale of Investments (net) (239 87) (7 33)

             Dividend income (445 11) (107 15)

             Provision for doub�ul Debts and Advances (net) 96 68 8 61 

             Employee compensa�on expenses (net) (1 51) (0 56)

             Exchange Adjustments (net) 412 13 (105 43)

 Opera�ng Profit before Working Capital changes 8,814.10 12,391.77 

 Adjustments for: 

              Trade and Other receivables 4,656 09 (2,381 93)

              Inventories (3,360 04) 2,430 46 

              Trade and Other payables 5,628 96 (3,594 80)

 Cash generated from opera�ons 15,739.11 8,845.51 

              Direct Taxes Paid (net of refunds) (1,452 64) (2,180 79)

 Net Cash from / (used in) Opera�ng ac�vi�es (A) 14,286.47 6,664.71 

 B)  Cash Flow From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es 

 Purchase of fixed assets (including capital work in progress) (4,985 26) (11,088 81)

 Sale of fixed assets (net) 88 16 54 98 

 Purchase of long term investments 

  Subsidiaries (8,119 90) (959 99)

  Others (5,112 40) (2 60)

 Sale of long term investments  Subsidiaries  0 13     

 Purchase of current investments (net) (4,788 93) (10,928 07)

 (Increase)/decrease in share applica�on money given  (412 29) (497 02)

 Dividend received 445 11 107 15 

 Interest received 831 44 740 86 

 Net cash used in inves�ng ac�vi�es (B) (22,053.94) (22,573.50)

 C)  Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es 

 Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securi�es premium) (Refer note 2)  5,079 47 27 63 

 Proceeds from issue of compulsorily conver�ble debentures 7,883 75     

 Proceeds from issue of debentures     10,000 00 

 Redemp�on of debentures     (1,300 00)

 Repayment of long term borrowings (net) (2,450 48) (1,158 46)

 Increase in other borrowings (net)  1,152 09 363 65 

 Payment from/(to) minority shareholders 1,000 00     

 Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax)  (475 07) (475 65)

 Interest paid (2,555 54) (1,871 80)

 Preliminary expenses incurred      (0 77)

 Net cash from financing ac�vi�es (C) 9,634.22 5,584.60 

Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March Consolidated Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 March 
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To the Members of Welspun Corp Limited

1. We have audited the a�ached Balance Sheet of Welspun Corp Limited (“the Company”) as at 31 March 2012, 
the Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement for the year ended on that date, annexed 
thereto. These financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility 
is to express an opinion on these financial statements based on our audit.

2. We conducted our audit in accordance with the audi�ng standards generally accepted in India. Those standards 
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial 
statements are free from material misstatement. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence 
suppor�ng the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the 
accoun�ng principles used and significant es�mates made by management, as well as evalua�ng the overall 
financial statement presenta�on. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion.

3. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2003 issued by the Central Government of India 
in terms of Sec�on 227(4A) of the Companies Act, 1956 (“the Act”), and on the basis of such checks as we 
considered appropriate and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, we annex hereto a 
statement on the ma�ers specified in paragraph 4 and 5 of the said order.

4. Further to our comments in the Annexure referred to in Paragraph (3) above, we report that:

 (a) We have obtained all the informa�on and explana�ons, which to the best of our knowledge and belief 
were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

 (b) In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company, so far as 
appears from our examina�on of those books; 

 (c) The Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt with by this report 
are in agreement with the books of account;

 (d) In our opinion, the Balance Sheet, Statement of Profit and Loss and the Cash Flow Statement dealt 
with by this report comply with the accoun�ng standards referred to in Sec�on 211 (3C) of the Act;

 (e) On the basis of wri�en representa�ons received from the Directors and taken on record by the Board, 
we report that none of the directors is disqualified as at 31 March 2012 from being appointed as a 
director in terms of clause (g) of sub sec�on (1) of Sec�on 274 of the Act;

 (f) In our opinion and to the best of our informa�on and according to the explana�ons given to us, the said 
accounts read together with the notes, give the informa�on required by the Act in the manner so required 
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accoun�ng principles generally accepted in India:

  i) In the case of the Balance Sheet, of the state of affairs of the Company as at 31 March 2012; 

  ii) In the case of the Statement of Profit and Loss, of the Profit for the year ended on that date; and

  iii) In the case of the Cash Flow Statement, of the cash flows for the year ended on that date.

For MGB & Co.

Chartered Accountants

Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari

Partner

Membership Number 105077

Mumbai, 29 May 2012

AUDITORS’ REPORT
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Annexure referred to in paragraph 3 of Auditors’ Report to the members of Welspun Corp Limited on 
the accounts for the year ended 31 March 2012

(I) (a) The Company has maintained proper records showing full par�culars including quan�ta�ve 
details and situa�on of its fixed assets.  

 (b) The fixed assets are physically verified by the management during the year as per the phased 
program designed to cover all the assets over a period, which in our opinion is reasonable 
having regard to the size of the  Company and nature of its assets. As informed, no material 
discrepancies were no�ced on such verifica�on. 

 (c) During the year, there was no disposal of substan�al part of fixed assets. 

(II) (a) As explained to us, the inventories have been physically verified by the management during 
the year except stock lying with third par�es in respect of whom confirma�ons have been 
obtained. In our opinion, the frequency of such verifica�on is reasonable.  

 (b) In our opinion, the procedures of physical verifica�on of inventories followed by the 
management are reasonable and adequate in rela�on to the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business.

 (c) As explained to us, the Company has maintained proper records of inventories and no 
material discrepancies were no�ced on physical verifica�on of inventories as compared to 
the book records.

(III) (a) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not granted any loans, 
secured or unsecured to companies, firms or other par�es covered in the register maintained under 
sec�on 301 of the Act. 

 (b) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company has not taken any loans, 
secured or unsecured from companies, firms or other par�es covered in the register maintained under 
sec�on 301 of the Act. 

(IV)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there is an 
adequate internal control system commensurate with the size of the Company and the 
nature of its business for the purchases of inventory, fixed assets and for the sale of goods 
and services. During the course of our audit, we have not observed any con�nuing failure to 
correct major weaknesses in the internal controls systems in respect of the aforesaid areas.

(V)  According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, there are no contracts or 
arrangements the par�culars of which are required to be entered into the register in 
pursuance of sec�on 301 of the Act.

(VI)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the Company 
has not accepted any deposits from the public during the year. 

(VII)  In our opinion, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate with the size and 
nature of its business. 

(VIII)  On the basis of records produced before us, we are of the opinion that prima facie cost 
accoun�ng records prescribed by the Central Government under sec�on 209 (1) (d) of the Act, 
in respect of ac�vi�es carried on by the Company covered under the rules under that sec�on, 
have been maintained. However, we are neither required to carry out nor have carried out 
any detailed examina�on of such cost accoun�ng records with a view to determine whether 
they are accurate or complete.

(IX)  According to the records of the Company examined by us and informa�on and explana�ons 
given to us: 

 (a) Undisputed statutory dues, including provident fund, investor educa�on and protec�on fund, 
employee state insurance, income tax, sales tax / value added tax, wealth tax, service tax, 
custom duty, excise duty, cess and any other material statutory dues to the extent applicable 
have been deposited regularly with the appropriate authori�es except for delays in few cases. 
There are no undisputed amounts payable in respect of the aforesaid dues outstanding as at 
31 March 2012 for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

 (b) The disputed dues of Sales Tax / value added tax, Service Tax and Excise Duty which have not 
been deposited are as under:

Name of the Statute  
(Nature of dues) 

 Amount           
 (Rs. in million) 

 Period to which  
the amount relates 

Forum where dispute is  
pending 

Gujarat Sales Tax Act, 
1969
Sales Tax / Value Added 
Tax

 13.86
2000 01, 2001 02, 2002 03, 
2005 06  and 2006 07

Sales tax Tribunal 

53.20 2006 07, 2007 08 
Joint Commissioner of Sales 
Tax (Appeals)

368.75 2009 10  and  2010 11 Assessment stage

Central Sales Tax Act, 
1956
Central Sales Tax

0.9 2001 02 Sales Tax Tribunal

The Central Excise Act, 
1944
  Excise Duty

13.14   2008 09 and 2009 10 
Commissioner of Central  
Excise and Customs

29.93
2003 04, 2006 07   
and 2007 08 

Commissioner  of Central  
Excise and Customs 
(Appeals)

20.60 2007 2008  and  2009 10
Deputy / Assistant  
Commissioner of Central  
Excise and Customs
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(XIX)  The Company has created adequate security in respect of debentures issued. 

(XX)  The Company has raised funds by issue of Global Depository Receipts during the year and Foreign 
Currency Conver�ble Bonds in the earlier years which have been u�lized for the purposes for which 
they are raised except funds pending u�liza�on have been temporarily invested as referred in  
Note 2(e) and 4(c). 

(XXI)  Based on our audit procedures performed and according to the informa�on and explana�ons 
given by the management, no fraud on or by the Company has been no�ced or reported 
during the course of our audit except fraud by an employee, who has indulged in malprac�ces 
for wrongful personal gain  detected during the year, the amount is yet to be ascertained.

For MGB & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari
Partner 
Membership Number 105077

Mumbai, 29 May 2012

Name of the Statute  
(Nature of dues) 

 Amount           
 (Rs. in million) 

 Period to which  
the amount relates 

Forum where dispute is  
pending 

Service Tax

97.55 2005 06 to 2011 12
Commissioner / Addi�onal  
Commissioner of Central  
Excise and Customs

31.65 2007 08  and  2008 09
Commissioner of Central  
Excise and Customs 
(Appeals)

23.99 2006 07 to 2011 12
Deputy Commissioner of 
Central Excise and Customs

21.32 
2004 05, 2006 07,  
2008 09 to 2011 12 

Superintendent of Central 
 Excise and Customs 

(X)  The Company does not have accumulated losses at the end of the financial year and has 
not incurred any cash losses in the current financial year or in the immediately preceding 
financial year.

(XI)  Based on our audit procedures and as per the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the 
company has not defaulted in repayment of dues to banks and debenture holders during the 
year.

(XII)  The Company has not granted any loans and advances on the basis of security by way of 
pledge of shares, debentures and other securi�es.

(XIII)  The Company is not a chit fund or a nidhi / mutual benefit fund / society. 

(XIV)  The Company is not dealing or trading in securi�es, debentures and other investments. 

(XV)  In our opinion and according to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us, the terms and 
condi�ons on which the Company has given guarantees for loans taken by subsidiaries and 
others from banks and financial ins�tu�ons are prima facie not prejudicial to the interests of 
the Company.

(XVI)  The Company has not raised any term loan during the year.

(XVII) According to the informa�on and explana�ons given to us and examina�on of the Balance 
Sheet of the Company and related informa�on as made available to us, we report that funds 
raised on short term basis have not been used for long term investments.

(XVIII)  During the year, the Company has not made any preferen�al allotment of shares to companies 
or par�es covered in the register maintained under sec�on 301 of the Act.
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(Rs. in million)

Notes  2012  2011 

EQUITY AND LIABILITIES 

Shareholders' funds 

     Share capital 2 1,138 91 1,023 34 

     Reserves and surplus 3 34,813 34 29,503 58 

35,952.25 30,526.92

Compulsorily Conver�ble Debentures (unsecured) [ Refer Note 2(f) ] 7,883 75     

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Transla�on Difference Account     65 14 

Non current liabili�es 

     Long term borrowings 4 22,838 77 25,229 01 

     Deferred tax liabili�es (net) 5 3,545 12 3,431 42 

     Other long term liabili�es 6 2,417 44 1,561 60 

     Long term provisions 7 139 53 93 61 

28,940.86 30,315.62

Current liabili�es 

     Short term borrowings 8 2,928 18 1,379 01 

     Trade payables 9 25,361 35 12,026 22 

     Other current liabili�es 10 8,008 43 6,761 93 

     Short term provisions 11 1,499 90 1,775 11 

37,797.86 21,942.28 

Total 110,574.72 82,849.97 

ASSETS 

Non current assets 

Fixed assets 12

      Tang ble assets 30,275 43 24,701 73 

      Intangible assets 258 56 344 60 

      Capital work in progress 1,979 48 4,951 39 

     Non current investments 13 14,659 39 4,812 21 

     Long term loans and advances 14 4,175 48 3,165 70 

     Other non current assets 15 76 31     

51,424.65 37,975.63 

Foreign Currency Monetary Item Transla�on Difference Account 322 97     

Current assets 

     Current investments 16 19,379 99 12,891 17 

     Inventories 17 16,498 49 13,156 35 

     Trade receivables 18 10,927 63 8,841 30 

     Cash and Bank balances 19 6,409 43 6,164 71 

     Short term loans and advances 20 4,372 29 3,049 78 

     Other current assets 21 1,239 26 771 02 

58,827.10 44,874.34 

Total 110,574.72 82,849.97 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1  56

As per our a�ached report of even date       For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W      

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077                              

Mumbai                                                                         Pradeep Joshi
29 May 2012                                                                     Company Secretary

Balance Sheet as at 31 March

(Rs. in million)

Notes  2012  2011 

Revenue

Revenue from Opera�ons  (gross) 22  60,541 39  65,331 10 

Less: Excise Duty  2,844 27  2,627 07 

Revenue from Opera�ons  (net)  57,697 11  62,704 03 

Other Income 23  2,192 04  935 14 

Total  59,889.15  63,639.17 

Expenditure

Cost of Materials Consumed 24  36,908 84  37,412 61 

Purchases of traded goods 25  6,853 50  8,938 01 

Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Goods in Process 26  (843 56)  (2,056 29)

Employee benefits expense 27  1,756 09  1,850 87 

Other expenses 28  10,136 74  8,896 97 

Total  54,811.60  55,042.17 

Profit before Finance costs, Deprecia�on/Amor�za�on and Tax  5,077.55  8,597.00 

Less: Deprecia�on and Amor�za�on expense 12 1,843 52 1,656 65

          Finance costs 29  2,470 96  1,676 72 

Profit before tax  763.07  5,263.63 

Less: Tax expense

      Current tax  71 64  1,142 36 

      MAT Credit En�tlement  (71 64)     

      Deferred tax  113 69  476 74 

Profit a�er tax  649.38  3,644.52 

Earnings per share of Rs  5 each fully paid up (in Rs ) 45

      Basic  2 96  17 82 

      Diluted  2 96  16 94 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 1  56

As per our a�ached report of even date       For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W      

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077                              

Mumbai                                                                         Pradeep Joshi
29 May 2012                                                                     Company Secretary

Statement of Profit and Loss for the Year ended 31 March
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Note 1 Significant Accoun�ng Policies

 
 I. Basis of Accoun�ng         

  The financial statements are prepared in accordance with Indian Generally Accepted Accoun�ng 
Principles (GAAP) under the historical cost conven�on on accrual basis and comply in all material 
aspects with the accoun�ng standards no�fied under sec�on 211 (3C), Companies (Accoun�ng 
Standards) Rules, 2006, the provisions of the Companies Act, 1956 and guidelines issued by the 
Securi�es and Exchange Board of India (SEBI)

  Pursuant to the announcement of the Ins�tute of Chartered Accountants of India (ICAI) on “Accoun�ng 
for Deriva�ves” on the early adop�on of Accoun�ng Standard (AS 30) “Financial Instruments: 
Recogni�on and Measurement”, the Company has early adopted the standard w.e.f 1 April 2007 to 
the extent that the adop�on does not conflict with the exis�ng mandatory accoun�ng and other 
authorita�ve pronouncements, Company Law and other regulatory requirements. 

 II. Use of Es�mates

  The prepara�on of the financial statements requires the management to make es�mates and 
assump�ons that affect the reported amounts of assets and liabili�es, disclosure of con�ngent 
liabili�es as at the date of the financial statements and the reported amount of revenue and expenses 
of the year. Actual results could differ from those es�mates. Any revision to such accoun�ng es�mate 
is recognized prospec�vely in current and future periods.

 III. Tangible and Intangible Assets

 (a) Tangible fixed assets are stated at original cost of acquisi�on / installa�on (net of cenvat credit availed) 
net off accumulated deprecia�on and impairment losses except freehold land which is carried at cost. 
Cost includes cost of acquisi�on, construc�on and installa�on, taxes, du�es, freight, other incidental 
expenses related to the acquisi�on, trial run expenses (net of revenue) and borrowing cost incurred 
during pre opera�onal period.

 (b) Capital Work in progress comprises cost of fixed assets and related expenses that are not yet ready for 
their intended use at the repor�ng date.

 (c) Intangible assets acquired are measured on ini�al recogni�on at cost. Intangible assets are carried at 
cost less accumulated amor�za�on and impairment loss, if any.

 IV. Borrowing Costs

  Borrowing costs a�ributable to the acquisi�on or construc�on of qualifying assets are capitalized as 
part of cost of such assets. All other borrowing costs are charged to revenue.

 V.  Impairment of Tangible and Intangible Assets

  At each Balance Sheet date, the Company reviews the carrying amount of fixed assets to determine 
whether there is any indica�on that those assets suffered impairment loss.  If any such indica�on exists, 
the recoverable amount of the assets is es�mated in order to determine the extent of impairment loss.  
The recoverable amount is higher of the net selling price and value in use, determined by discoun�ng 
the es�mated future cash flows expected from the con�nuing use of the asset to their present value.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

 VI. Deprecia�on / Amor�za�on on Tangible and Intangible Assets

 (a) Deprecia�on on tangible fixed assets is provided on straight line method at the rates prescribed in 
Schedule XIV to the Companies Act, 1956 except for certain Plant and Machinery which are depreciated 
on the basis of es�mated useful lives of 13  15 years. During the year, the company has revised useful 
life of computers and mobile phone office equipments to 4 years and 3 years respec�vely. The rates of 
deprecia�on derived from these es�mated useful lives are higher than those prescribed in Schedule 
XIV to the Companies Act, 1956. [Refer note 12(7)]

 (b) For determining the appropriate rate of deprecia�on on Plant and Machinery, con�nuous process 
plant has been iden�fied on the basis of technical opinion by the Company / Expert.

 (c) Intangible assets are amor�zed on a straight line basis over the economic useful life es�mated by the 
management.

 VII. Investments

  Investments intended to be held for more than a year, from the date of acquisi�on, are classified as 
long term and are stated at cost. Provision for diminu�on in value of long term investments is made 
to recognize a decline other than temporary in nature. Current Investments are stated at cost or fair 
value, whichever is lower.

 VIII. Revenue Recogni�on

 (a) Revenue from sale of goods is recognized on transfer of significant risks and rewards of ownership to 
the customers, which is generally on dispatch of goods. Export Sales are accounted for on the basis of 
date of bill of lading. Gross Sales include excise duty and adjustments for price varia�ons.

 (b) Export benefits: Duty En�tlement Pass Book (DEPB), Focus Market and Focus Product are accounted 
on accrual basis. Target Plus / Duty Free En�tlement Cer�ficate scheme of EXIM policy are recognized 
when u�lized.

 (c)  Revenue from Services is recognized when the services are completed.

 (d)  Dividend income is recognized when the right to receive the dividend is established.

 (e) Interest income is recognized on a �me propor�on basis taking into account outstanding amount and 
the applicable interest rate.

 IX. Inventories

  Inventories are valued at lower of cost and net realizable value. The basis of determining cost for 
various categories of inventories is as follows :

 (a) Raw Materials, Stores and Spares  Moving weighted average basis.

 (b) Goods in process and Finished Goods  Cost of Direct Material, Labour and other manufacturing 
expenses.

 (c) Excise duty liabilty is included in the valua�on of closing inventory of Finished Goods.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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 X. Foreign Currency Transac�ons

 (a) Foreign exchange transac�ons are accounted at the exchange rate prevailing on the date of such 
transac�ons. Current monetary assets and liabili�es are translated at the exchange rate prevailing at 
the repor�ng date. Non monetary items are carried at cost.

 (b) Gains or losses arising on remi�ance / transla�ons at the year  end are credited / debited to the 
Statement of profit and loss except treatment as per amendment to AS 11 effec�ve �ll 31 March 2020 
[ Refer note 31 (b) ].

 (c) Premium / discount on forward exchange contracts not rela�ng to firm commitments or highly 
probable forecasted transac�ons and not intended for trading or specula�on purposes is amor�zed as 
income or expense over the life of the contract.

 XI. Deriva�ve Instruments and Hedge Accoun�ng

  The Company uses foreign currency deriva�ve contracts to hedge its risk associated with foreign 
currency fluctua�ons rela�ng to certain firm commitments and forecasted transac�ons. The 
Company designates these hedging instruments as cash flow hedges and applying the recogni�on 
and measurement principles set out in Accoun�ng Standard 30 “Financial Instruments: Recogni�on 
and Measurement” (AS 30).  The gain or loss on the effec�ve hedges is recorded in “Hedging Reserve 
Account” un�l the transac�on is complete.  The gain or loss is accounted in the statement of Profit 
and Loss upon comple�on of the transac�on or when the hedge instrument expires or terminates or 
ceases to qualify for hedge accoun�ng.

 XII. Employee Benefits

 (a) Short term employee benefits are recognized as an expense at the undiscounted amount in the 
Statement of Profit and Loss of the year in which the related services are rendered.

 (b) Post employment and other long term benefits are recognized as an expense in the statement of 
profit and loss of the year in which the employee has rendered services. The expense is recognized at 
the present value of the amounts payable determined using actuarial valua�on techniques. Actuarial 
gains and losses in respect of post employment and other long term benefits are recognized in the 
statement of Profit and Loss.

 (c) Payments to defined contribu�on re�rement benefit schemes are charged as expenses as and when 
they fall due.

 XIII.    Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme

  In respect of employee stock op�ons granted pursuant to the Company’s Stock Op�on Scheme, the 
intrinsic value of the op�ons (excess of market price of the share over the exercise price of the op�on) 
is treated as discount and accounted as employee compensa�on cost over the ves�ng period.

 XIV. Accoun�ng for Taxes on Income

 (a) Current tax is determined as the amount of tax payable in respect of taxable income for the year 
computed as per the provisions of the Income Tax Act, 1961.

 (b) Deferred tax is recognized subject to considera�on of prudence, on �ming difference, being the 
difference between taxable income and accoun�ng income that originate in one period and are capable 
of reversal in one or more subsequent periods and measured using relevant enacted tax rates.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

 XV.     Leases

 (a) Finance lease

  Assets acquired under finance lease are capitalised and the corresponding lease liability is recognized 
at lower of the fair value of the leased assets and the present value of minimum lease payments at the 
incep�on of the lease. In�al costs directly a�ributable to lease are recognized with the asset under 
lease. 

 (b) Opera�ng lease 

  Lease of assets under which all the risks and rewards of ownership are effec�vely retained by the 
lessor are classified as opera�ng lease. Lease payments under opera�ng leases are recognized as an 
expense on accrual basis in accordance with the respec�ve lease agreements.

 XVI. Provisions, con�ngent liabili�es and con�ngent assets

 (a) Con�ngent liabili�es are disclosed in respect of possible obliga�ons that arise from past events but 
their existence will be confirmed by the occurrence or non occurrence of one or more uncertain future 
events. A provision is made when it is probable that an ou�low of resources embodying economic 
benefits will be required to se�le an obliga�on and in respect of which a reliable es�mate can be 
made. Provision is not discounted and is determined based on best es�mate required to se�le the 
obliga�on at the year end date.

 (b) Con�ngent Assets are not recognized or disclosed in the financial statements.

 XVII. Earnings per share

  Basic earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the weighted average number of equity 
shares outstanding during the year. Dilu�ve earnings per share is computed and disclosed using the 
weighted average number of equity and dilu�ve equity equivalent shares outstanding during the year, 
except when the results would be an� dilu�ve.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs in million)

2012 2011

2. Share capital

Authorised

304,000,000 (304,000,000) Equity Shares of Rs  5/  each  1,520 00  1,520 00 

98,000,000 (98,000,000) Preference Shares of Rs  10/  each  980 00  980 00 

Total  2,500.00  2,500.00 

Issued subscribed and paid up

227,781,035  (204,668,910) Equity Share of Rs  5/  each fully paid up  1,138 91  1,023 34 

Total 1,138.91 1,023.34 

 a)  Reconcilia�on of the number of Equity shares outstanding

2012 2011

Number of 
Equity Shares

Rs in million Number of 
Equity Shares

Rs in million 

At the beginning of the year  204,668,910  1,023 34  204,322,410  1,021 61 

  By way of Global Depository Receipts (GDR)  23,026,000  115 13     

 Equity shares allo�ed on exercise of 
Employees Stock Op�ons

 86,125  0 43  346,500  1 73 

Outstanding at the end of the year  227,781,035  1,138.91  204,668,910  1,023.34 

 b)  Terms / right a�ached to equity shares

 The Company has only one class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 5 per share. Each holder of equity 
shares is en�tled to one vote per share, however the holders of global depository receipts (GDR’s) do not 
have vo�ng rights in respect of shares represented by the GDR’s �ll the shares are held by the custodian  
[ Refer note 2(e) ]. The dividend proposed by the Board of Directors is subject to the approval of the 
shareholders in the ensuing Annual General Mee�ng.

 In the event of liquida�on of the company, the holders of the equity shares will be en�tled to receive 
remaining assets of the company, a�er distribu�on of preferen�al amounts. The distribu�on will be in 
propor�on to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

 c)  Shareholders holding more than 5% shares of the company 

Name of Shareholder 2012 2011

Number of 
Equity Shares

Percentage (%) Number of 
Equity Shares

Percentage (%)

J P Morgan Chase Bank, NA ADR Account 
(Custodian and against which GDR have 
been issued to Insight Solu�ons Limited)

 23,026,000  10 11         

Life Insurance Corpora�on of India Limited 
& its Schemes

 19,277,980  8 46         

Welspun Wintex Limited  13,336,576  5 85  13,189,576 6 44

Welspun Mercan�le Limited  12,377,701  5 43  12,157,701 5 94

Welspun Fintrade Limited  15,148,340  6 65  14,481,444 7 08

Krishiraj Trading Limited  26,805,403  11 77  25,630,600 12 52

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

 d)  Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme

 In respect of op�ons granted under the Welspun Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme, in accordance with the 
guidelines issued by Securi�es and Exchange Board of India, the value of op�ons (based on intrinsic value of 
the share on the date of the grant of the op�on) is accounted as deferred employee compensa�on, which 
is amor�zed on a straight line basis over the ves�ng period. Employee benefits expense include credit of 
Rs.1.51 million (Rs. 0.56 million) being amor�za�on of deferred employee compensa�on.

 During the year, 78,250 equity shares and 7,875 equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up were issued 
at a price of Rs. 80.00 and Rs. 66.75 each respec�vely. Discount allowed aggrega�ng to Rs. 2.27 million  
(Rs. 9.24 million) in respect of shares allo�ed pursuant to the Employee Stock Op�ons Scheme is credited to 
Securi�es Premium Account as per guidelines of Securi�es and Exchange Board of India.

 Stock Op�ons outstanding as at the year end are as follows:

Granted during  
2006 07

Granted during  
2009 10

Exercise Price Rs  80 00 Rs  66 75

Date of Grant 8 January 2007 20 April 2009

Ves�ng period commences on 8 January 2008 20 April 2010

Op�ons outstanding at the beginning of the year  523,250  40,750 

Op�ons exercised during the year  78,250  7,875 

Op�ons lapsed during the year  69,750     

Op�ons Outstanding as at 31 March 2012  375,250  32,875 

 e)  Global Depository Receipts

 During the year, the Company has raised US$ 115.00 million (Equivalent INR 5,180.85 million) by way of issue 
of 23,026,000 equity shares of Rs 5 each fully paid up at a premium of Rs. 220 each (equivalent 23,026 Non 
Vo�ng Global Depository Receipts each of US$ 4,994.45 each represen�ng 1000 Equity Shares of par value 
of Rs.5 each). The en�re proceeds have been invested in short term securi�es as at 31 March 2012.

 f)  Compulsorily Conver�ble Debentures (CCD)

 During the year, the Company has raised US$ 178.01 million (Equivalent INR 7,883.75 million) by way of 
issue of  unsecured compulsorily conver�ble debentures. The CCD holders have an op�on to convert the 
CCD into 35,038,889 equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up at a conversion price of Rs. 225 per share at 
any�me during a period of 18 months from the date of issue of the CCD i.e. on or before 17 February 2013. 
If not already fully converted before 17 February 2013, at the expiry of a period of 18 months from the date 
of issue of the CCD, the unconverted part of the CCD shall be deemed to be automa�cally converted into 
Equity Shares. The CCD carry a coupon of 5% (Five) annually un�l issue of Equity Shares upon conversion of 
the CCD.

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs in million)

2012 2011

3. Reserves and surplus

Capital Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,057 26 1,057 26 

Securi�es Premium

As per Last Balance Sheet 12,332 32 12,330 99 

Add/(Less) :Received during the year 5,072 08 25 90 

                     Discount on issue of shares under Employees Stock Op�on Scheme 2 27 9 24 

                     Premium on redemp�on of Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (45 75) (33 80)

                     U�lized towards share issue expenses (108 17)     

17,252 74 12,332 32 

Debenture Redemp�on Reserve 

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,107 14 643 75 

Add: Appropriated during the year 357 14 463 39 

1,464 29 1,107 14 

General Reserve

As per Last Balance Sheet 1,631 11 1,266 61 

Add: Appropriated during the year 65 00 364 50 

1,696 11 1,631 11 

Employee Stock Op�ons Outstanding 10 77 14 90 

Less: Deferred employee compensa�on     (0 35)

10 77 14 55 

Hedging Reserve Account [ Refer note 31 (c) ] (178 18) (54 29)

Surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss

As per last balance sheet 13,415 48 11,074 89 

Profit for the year 649 38 3,644 52 

Less: Appropria�ons

General Reserve 65 00 364 50

Debenture Redemp�on Reserve Account 357 14 463 39

Proposed dividend on Equity Shares 113 89 409 34

Tax on Proposed dividend 18 48 66 40

Dividend on equity shares of earlier year     0 25

Tax on dividend of earlier year     0 04

Total Appropria�ons 554 51 1,303 93

Net surplus in the statement of Profit and Loss 13,510 35 13,415 48 

Total  34,813.34  29,503.58 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

(Rs in million)

 Non Current Current 

2012 2011 2012 2011

4. Long term borrowings

Secured

Redeemable Non Conver�ble Debentures 10,000 00 11,700 00 1,700 00     

External Commercial Borrowings 5,174 13 6,789 68 2,577 38     

Unsecured

Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds 7,631 25 6,689 25         

Deferred Sales Tax  Loan 33 39 50 08 16 69 16 69 

Total 22,838.77 25,229.01 4,294.07 16.69 

 a)  The debentures together with interest are secured by first charge ranking pari passu by way of mortgage/
hypotheca�on of en�re immovable and movable fixed assets of the Company, both present and future and 
second/floa�ng charge on current assets, subject to prior charge in favour of  banks for  working  capital  
facili�es.

No. of Debentures Face Value (Rs.) Redemp�on Date
Rate of Interest 

(p.a.)
Amount

(Rs. in million)

1250 1,000,000 28 November 2012 10 50%  1,250 

450 1,000,000 30 December 2012 10 40% 450

 5000 1,000,000 3 August 2025 9 55%  5,000 

 5000 1,000,000 28 September 2025 9 55%  5,000 

Total  11,700 

 b) External Commercial Borrowings (ECB) is secured by first charge ranking pari passu by way of mortgage/  
hypotheca�on of en�re immovable and movable tangible fixed assets of the Company both present 
and future. Further, the ECB is also secured by exclusive charge by way of hypotheca�on of Debt Service 
Reserve Account. The Loan amount comprises of USD 140 million (USD 140 million) and JPY 1015.20 million  
(JPY 1015.20 million). The loan carries Interest of LIBOR plus 1.25%.

 The loan is repayable as follows

Date of repayment USD  (million)
Amount  

(Rs. in million)
JPY (million)

Amount  
(Rs. in million)

6 April 2012  46 55  2,368 23  337 55  209 14 

6 April 2013  46 55  2,368 23  337 55  209 14 

6 April 2014  46 90  2,386 04  340 10  210 72 

 c) Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (FCCB)

    i) During the financial year 2009  2010, the Company had raised US$ 150 million (Equivalent INR 6,942 million) 
by way of issue of 1500   4.5%  Foreign Currency  Conver�ble Bonds (FCCB) of US$ 100,000 each. The  Bondholders   
have an op�on to convert these bonds into 24,010,000 equity shares of Rs. 5 each fully paid up at an ini�al 
conversion price of Rs. 300 per share with a fixed rate of exchange on conversion of Rs. 48.02  US$ 1 at any �me  
on or a�er 26 November 2009 un�l 10 days prior to Maturity date (i.e. 17 October 2014).Unless previously 
converted, redeemed or repurchased and cancelled, the Bonds will be redeemed on 17 October 2014 at 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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102.8028% of the principal amount so as to give  a gross yield of 5% per annum (calculated on semi annual 
basis) to the Bond holders.

 The Company has an op�on to redeem the Bonds at their Early Redemp�on Amount upon occurrence of 
events specified in the Offering Circular for issue of the Bonds (“Offering Circular”). Further, the Company 
has an op�on to mandatorily convert the Bonds a�er three years as specified in the Offering Circular.

 ii) Premium payable on redemp�on of FCCB aggrega�ng to Rs. 45.75 Million (Rs. 33.80 million) has been 
adjusted against Securi�es Premium as per Sec�on 78 of the Companies Act, 1956. In the event, Bond 
holders exercise the conversion op�on, the amount of premium u�lized from securi�es premium will be 
suitably adjusted in respec�ve years.

 iii) Part of the net proceeds received from the issue of FCCB has been u�lized as per object of the issue 
viz for funding of Plate and Coil Mill, Pipe Mill Capex Projects (Anjar and Mandya) and Investment in 
overseas Subsidiary. Pending u�liza�on, the balance issue proceeds of USD 17.04 million equivalent  
INR 866.91 million (USD 77.41 million  equivalent INR 3,452.28 million) have been invested in short term 
deposits/current account with a Bank abroad and Rs. 1.46 million (Rs. 2.8 million) lying in current account 
with a bank in India.

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

5. Deferred tax liabili�es (net)

Deferred tax liabili�es

Fiscal allowance on Fixed Assets 4,157 08 3,513 63 

Others 104 79 (21 25)

4,261 86 3,492 38 

Deferred tax assets

Employee benefits 15 17 14 97 

Provision for doub�ul debts and advances 56 49 45 99 

Unabsorbed fiscal allowances 645 09 

716 75 60 96 

Total  3,545.12  3,431.42 

6. Other long term liabili�es

Liability towards claims 2,417 44 1,561 60 

Total  2,417.44  1,561.60 

7. Long term provisions

Employee Benefits  44 35  44 18 

Premium payable on redemp�on of FCCB  95 18  49 43 

Total  139.53  93.61 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

8. Short term borrowings

Secured

Working Capital Loan from Banks

  Foreign currency  992 06     

  Rupee 735 22 1,379 01 

(Secured by first charge on hypotheca�on of raw materials, finished goods and work / goods 
in process, stores & spares and book debts of the Company and second charge on en�re 
immovable and movable fixed assets of the Company both present and future )

Short term loan from other par�es 1,200 90     

(Secured against pledge of bonds of Rs 1,200 90 million held as current investments)

Total  2,928.18  1,379.01 

9. Trade payables

Acceptances 22,145 05 10,606 76 

Others (Refer note 30) 3,216 30 1,419 46 

Total  25,361.35  12,026.22 

10. Other current liabili�es

Current maturi�es of long term borrowings (Refer note 4)  4,294 07  16 69 

Interest accrued but not due on borrowings  557 86  298 27 

Unclaimed Dividend  5 20  4 27 

Other payables

Creditors for 

  Capital goods  175 54  194 73 

  Expenses  759 24  2,325 56 

Trade advances and deposits  1,229 56  2,844 53 

Statutory dues  732 58  631 93 

Liability towards claims  254 38  445 95 

Total  8,008.43  6,761.93 

11. Short term provisions

Employee benefits 2 40 1 97 

Others for

  Proposed equity dividend 113 89 409 34 

  Tax on proposed equity dividend 18 48 66 40 

  Li�ga�ons 79 79 103 68 

  Liquidated damages 572 07 482 56 

  Mark to market losses on Deriva�ve contracts 521 76 266 59 

  Taxa�on (net) 191 52 444 57 

Total 1,499.90 1,775.11 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

13. Non Current Investments

(valued at cost unless stated otherwise)

A. Trade Investments  Unquoted

i) Wholly owned subsidiaries

Welspun Pipes Inc

10,001 (10,001) Equity Shares of USD 1 each  0 44  0 44 

16,000 (16,000) Redeemable Preferred Stock of USD 1000 each #  645 50  645 50 

Welspun Pipes Limited  0 50  0 50 

50,000 (50,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each 

Welspun Infratech Limited (Refer note 43)

48,639,899 (24,750,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each  1,920 85  1,000 85 

28,300 (22,500) 7% Unsecured Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures of Rs 100,000 each  2,830 00  2,250 00 

Welspun Tradings Limited  50 22  50 22 

5,013,402 (5,013,402) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited  186 60  141 60 

1,875,000 (1,425,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

ii) Other Subsidiaries

Welspun Maxsteel Limited (Refer note 42(a))  8,042 17     

113,622,058 (Nil) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each

Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited 

102,089 (99,969) Equity Shares of USD 1 each  4 70  4 61 

14,999,968 (14,999,968) Preference Shares of USD 1 each  680 04  680 04 

Welspun Construc�ons Private Limited      0 10 

Nil (10,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

iii) Joint Venture

Dahej Infrastructure Private Limited (Extent of holding 50%)

500,000 Equity Shares of Rs 10 each  5 00  5 00 

Less: Provision for diminu�on in the value  (5 00)  (5 00)

iv) Associates

Red Lebondal Limited (Extent of holding  25%)  0 03  0 03 

450 (450) Equity Shares of Euro 1 each

Welspun Energy Limited (Extent of holding 26%)  262 74  2 73 

17,515,300 (273,000) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

B. Other Investments  Quoted

Welspun Investments and Commercials Limited * [Rs  484 (Rs  484)]  0 00  0 00 

5 (5) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Welspun Global Brands Limited * [ Rs  459 (Rs  459)]  0 00  0 00 

10 (10) Equity Shares of Rs 10 each

Standard Chartered Bank PLC Indian Depository Receipt @  34 77  34 77 

334,331 (334,331) Indian Depository Receipt of Rs  100 each

C. Other Investments  Unquoted

Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited  0 05  0 05 

5,000 (5,000) Equity Shares of Rs  10 each 

Welspun Enterprises (Cyprus) Limited  0 77  0 77 

11,800 (11,800) Equity Shares of Euro 1 each

Total  14,659.39  4,812.21 

(All the above shares and securi�es are fully paid up)

* Denotes figures less than Rs  10,000

# The company has given an undertaking to banks for non disposal of its shareholding 
for credit facili�es granted to subsidiaries

@ Diminu�on in value of long term investment of Rs 3 34 million is not provided for, 
considering the same to be temporary in nature

Aggregate book value of quoted investments  34 77  34 77 

Aggregate book value of unquoted investments  14,624 62  4,777 44 

Aggregate market value of quoted investments  31 43  37 60 

Aggregate provision for dimuni�on in value of investments  5 00  5 00 

         

14. Long term loans and advances

(Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Capital Advances 

  Subsidairy (Refer note 40)  26 13  103 72 

  Others  88 54  1,032 44 

Less: Provision for doub�ul Advances  2 14  2 10 

 112 54  1,134 06 

Deposits

  Related par�es (Refer note 40)  351 10  395 10 

  Others  71 57  68 60 

Less: Provision for doub�ul deposits  2 84     

 419 83  463 69 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Loans and Advances to related par�es

Loan to Subsidiary  1,116 32  940 86 

Share Applica�on Money

 Subsidiaries  1,513 40  0 78 

 Other Related par�es  894 76  498 40 

 3,524 47  1,440 04 

Other Loans and Advances

Advances recoverable in cash or kind  113 41  121 60 

Prepaid Expenses  4 87  5 79 

Loan to Employees  0 36  0 51 

 118 64  127 90 

Total  4,175.48  3,165.70 

15. Other non current assets

Receivable towards claim  76 31     

Total  76.31     

16. Current investments

(Valued at lower of cost and fair value, unless stated otherwise)

Quoted

i) Bonds

10 05% Air India Limited Bonds 2031  2,978 23     

2,786 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  10,00,000 each 

8 71% Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  267 70     

2,674,500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 97% Andhra Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  20 03     

200,000 (N l) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 79% Government of India Loan 2021  624 57     

6,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 15% Government of India Loan 2024  570 99     

5,500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

8 97% Government of India Loan 2030  1,660 99     

16,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 30% Government of India Loan 2040  616 98     

6,350,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 83% Government of India Loan 2041  2,229 06     

21,600,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 78% Gujarat State Development Loan 2021  10 00     

100,000 (N l) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 23% Gujarat State Development Loan 2021  252 60     

2,500,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 25% IDBI Bank Limited  16 91     

17 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2031  114 72     

26,104 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2032  77 47     

15,650 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2034  170 50     

41,470 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2035  14 51     

4,795 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2036  5 70     

2,190 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2037  44 41     

14,840 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

9 65% Krishna Bhagya Jala Nigam Limited 2022  730 00     

730 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 48% LIC Housing Finance Limited 2013  49 57     

50 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 73% Madhya Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  151 61     

1,500,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 99% Madhya Pradesh State Development Loan 2022  5 06     

50,500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 79% Maharashtra state Development Loan 2021 250 35

25,00,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 42% Na�onal Fer�lizers Limited 2016  100 00     

100 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 20% Na�onal Highways Authority of India 2022  144 48     

141,565 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000 each

8 30% Na�onal Highway Authority of India 2027  81 77     

79,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000 each

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

9 00% NTPC Limited 2027  45 40     

227 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  200,000 each

9 35% Power Grid Corpora�on of India Limited 2018  100 60     

100 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 25% Power Grid Corpora�on of India Limited 2018  1,121 95     

896 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,250,000 each 

9 70% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2018  50 98     

50 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 36% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021  549 47     

550 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 45% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2026  194 71     

195 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 46% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2026  600 82     

595 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 61% Power Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021  495 00     

500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 80% Pondicherry State Development Loan 2022  80 01     

800,000 (N l) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 38% Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Limited 2016  108 50     

108 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 48% Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Limited 2021  896 10     

887 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 75% Rural Electrifica�on Corpora�on Limited 2021  100 00     

100 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 02% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2021  101 24     

1,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 23% Rajasthan State Development Loan 2021  101 53     

1,000,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 85% SBI Cards and Payments Services Limited 2019  400 00     

400 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

11 40% SREI Infrastructure Finance Limited 2022  500 00     

500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

10 20% Tourism Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2021  54 00     

54 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

11 80% TATA Iron and Steel Company Perpetual Bonds  531 25     

500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

8 71% Tamilnadu State Development Loan 2022  356 18     

3,554,500 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

8 72% Tamilnadu State Development Loan 2022  130 06     

1,300,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each

9 02% U�ar Pradesh State Development Loan 2021  200 90     

2,000,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

8 81% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  250 33     

2,500,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 04% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  50 16     

500,000 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

9 28% West Bengal State Development Loan 2021  101 93     

1,000,000 (Ni ) Bonds of Rs  100 each 

10 85%  West Bengal State Electricity Distribu�on Company Limited 2026  69 06     

69 Bonds (Nil) of Rs  1,000,000 each 

Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited Deep Discount Bond 2038  134 90  123 05 

41,470 (41,470) Bonds of Rs  25,000 each

8 60% LIC Housing Finance Limited 2020  4 13  4 00 

4 (4) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each 

9 70% Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2030  374 29  249 26 

362 (242) Bonds of Rs  1,000,000 each

9 34% West Bengal State Electricity Distribu�on Company Limited 2025      1,454 98 

Nil (1,411) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

8 90% Tourism Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2020      30 06 

Nil (30) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 95% Allahabad Bank Limited 2011      244 18 

Nil (2,500) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

10% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2017      358 55 

Nil (3,550) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

10 40% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2020      220 30 

Nil (2,190) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

11% Dewan Housing Finance Corpora�on Limited 2021      698 78 

Nil (7,500) Bonds of Rs 100,000 each

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

5 85% Gas Authority of India Limited 2013      1 88 

Nil (2) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 98% Industrial Finance Corpora�on of India Limited 2030      57 26 

Nil (56) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 80% ICICI Bank Limited 2013      1 01 

Nil (100) Bonds of Rs 10,000 each

9 40% Oriental Bank Of Commerce Limited      35 38 

Nil (35) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

11% Shriram Transport Finance Company Limited 2020      771 53 

Nil (750) Bonds of Rs 1,000,000 each

9 95% State Bank of India Limited 2026      1,034 48 

Nil (99,900) Bonds of Rs 10,000 each

ii) Cer�ficate of Deposits

UCO Bank Limited 2012  243 91     

2500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100,000 each 

Allahabad Bank Limited 2012  244 43     

2500 (Nil) Bonds of Rs  100,000 each

Allahabad Bank Limited 2011      976 35 

Nil (10,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Bank of India Limited 2011      490 67 

Nil (5,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Bank of India Limited 2012      227 27 

Nil (2,500) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Central Bank of India Limited 2011      1,956 01 

Nil (20,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Punjab & Sind Bank Limited 2011      479 20 

Nil (5,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Punjab Na�onal Bank Limited 2011      1,030 93 

Nil (10,500) Units of Rs 100,000 each

UCO Bank Limited 2011      2,446 07 

Nil (25,000) Units of Rs 100,000 each

Total  19,379.99  12,891.17 

Aggregate Book Value of Quoted Investments  19,379 99  12,891 17 

Aggregate Market Value of Quoted Investments  19,651 50  12,928 77 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

17. Inventories

(As taken, valued and cer�fied by management)

Raw materials (including Goods in transit of Rs  2,775 64 million (Rs  3,633 54 million)  8,930 06  6,670 15 

Goods in Process  1,300 61  508 28 

Finished goods  4,861 07  4,809 84 

Stores and spares  1,406 75  1,168 08 

Total  16,498.49  13,156.35 

Details of Inventories Underbroad head.

Raw Materials

H R  Coils  902 51  858 39 

H R  Plates  2,967 19  205 62 

M S Slabs  1,915 39  1,775 03 

Others  369 33  197 57 

Goods in transit  2,775 64  3,633 54 

Total  8,930.06  6,670.15 

Goods in process

Welded Pipes  229 57  203 67 

Coa�ng  14 94  7 61 

Plates and Coils  461 43  212 29 

Others  594 68  84 71 

Total  1,300.61  508.28 

Finished goods

Welded Pipes  3,809 74  3,117 40 

M S Plate  907 30  1,187 01 

H R Coils  120 41  404 64 

Coa�ng  23 62  97 40 

Others      3 39 

Total  4,861.07  4,809.84 

18. Trade receivables 

(Unsecured and considered good, unless otherwise stated)

Over six months

Considered good  1,289 06  741 57 

Considered Doub�ul  62 60  50 57 

Less: Provision for doub�ul debts  (62 60)  (50 57)

 1,289 06  741 57 

Others considered good *  9,638 57  8,099 73 

Total  10,927.63  8,841.30 

* includes receivable from Subsidiaries Rs  2,760 50 million (Rs  127 15 million)

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

19. Cash and Bank balances

Cash and cash equivalents

Balances with banks:

  Current accounts * 3,674 65 979 67

  Unclaimed dividend accounts 5 20 4 27

  Deposits having original maturity period of less than three months 1,877 65 3,181 89

Cheques on hand 36 00 55 92

Cash on hand 2 60 2 47

Other Bank balances

Deposits having original maturity period of more than three months but less than 
twelve months

30 76 673 40

Deposits having original maturity period of more than twelve months     535 08

Margin Money Deposits 782 57 732 02

Total 6,409.43 6,164.71

* includes Rs  25 56 m llion (Rs  29 51 million) being balance in Debt Service Reserve  
   account, not available for use by the company

20. Short term loans and advances

      (Unsecured considered good unless otherwise stated)

Deposits

  Related par�es (Refer note 40)  37 28  37 28 

  Others  12 34  7 76 

 49 62  45 04 

Loans and Advances to Subsidiaries  191 95  0 60 

Share Applica�on Money to Subsidiaries  1,293 84  555 54 

Other Loans and Advances

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind  421 60  371 77 

Balances with government authori�es  2,537 30  2,134 73 

Prepaid expense  49 10  34 48 

Loans and advances to employees  27 37  22 10 

 3,035 36  2,563 08 

Less: Provision for doub�ul advances  198 48  114 48 

Total  4,372.29  3,049.78 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

21. Other current assets

Interest accrued on

  Subsidiaries 248 33 26 11

  Current Investment 616 13 145 04

  Fixed deposits 45 79 67 18

  Others 17 80 15 52

Receivable towards claim 76 31

Export benefits receivable 226 43 508 71

Assets held for disposal 8 46 8 46

Total 1,239.26 771.02

22. Revenue from Opera�ons

Sale of Product

  Finished Goods  49,357 62  52,428 61 

  Traded goods  7,252 48  9,414 36 

Other Opera�ng Revenues (Refer note 46)  3,931 29  3,488 13 

Revenue from Opera�ons (gross)  60,541.39  65,331.10 

Less: Excise Duty  2,844 27  2,627 07 

Revenue from Opera�ons (net)  57,697.11  62,704.03 

Details of Sale of Product under broad head.

Finished Goods

Welded Pipes  29,227 10  33,336 45 

M S  Plates  14,793 23  15,360 89 

H R  Coils  3,097 70  2,113 02 

Coa�ng  460 97  393 21 

Power  195 84  418 01 

Steam  786 56  589 60 

Others  796 22  217 42 

 49,357.62  52,428.61 

Traded Goods

H R  Coils  7,252 48  9,414 36 

 7,252.48  9,414.36 

23. Other Income

Interest from

  Subsidiaries  269 36  29 01 

  Current Investments  692 64  269 11 

  Fixed Deposits  133 64  197 26 

  Others  124 30  173 59 

Profit on Sale of Fixed Assets (net)  0 10     

Dividend Income  405 00  98 60 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Profit on Sale of Investments  219 87  14 85 

Miscellaneous Income  347 13  152 73 

Total  2,192.04  935.14 

24. Cost of Materials consumed

Inventory at the beginning period  3,036 61  3,586 44 

Add: Purchases  40,026 65  36,862 78 

 43,063 26  40,449 22 

Less: Inventory at the end of the year  6,154 42  3,036 61 

Total  36,908.84  37,412.61 

Details of Raw Material Consumed

H R  Coils  8,260 85  14,091 57 

H R  Plates  12,470 24  8,567 08 

M S Slab  15,129 09  13,970 53 

Welding and Coa�ng Materials  842 24  783 41 

Others  206 43     

 36,908.84  37,412.60 

25. Purchases of Traded Goods

Purchases of Traded Goods  6,853 50  8,938 01 

Total  6,853.50  8,938.01 

26. Changes in inventories of Finished Goods, Goods in Process

Inventories at the end of the year

Goods in process  1,300 61  508 28 

Finished goods  4,861 07  4,809 84 

 6,161 68  5,318 11 

Inventories at the beginning of the year

Goods in process  508 28  564 64 

Finished goods  4,809 84  2,697 19 

 5,318 11  3,261 83 

Total (843.56) (2,056.29)

27. Employee benefits expense

Salaries, Wages and Bonus  1,562 24  1,632 48 

Contribu�on to Provident and other funds  110 23  119 33 

Employee compensa�on expenses (Net)  (1 51)  (0 56)

Staff Welfare expenses  85 14  99 62 

Total  1,756.09  1,850.87 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

28. Other expenses

Stores and Spares consumed  1,875 35  1,451 92 

Coa�ng and Other Job charges  1,833 60  290 86 

Power, Fuel and Water charges  1,554 16  1,298 31 

Freight, Material Handling and Transporta�on  1,629 53  1,938 23 

Excise duty on decrease in stock  2 24  54 98 

Rent  86 75  118 36 

Rates and Taxes  8 23  56 40 

Repairs and Maintenance

   Plant and Machinery  150 60  178 50 

   Bu ldings  26 36  20 14 

   Others  40 12  51 14 

Travelling and Conveyance Expenses  156 72  254 64 

Communica�on  Expenses  20 37  24 42 

Professional and Consultancy Fees  253 84  399 12 

Insurance  83 02  82 17 

Directors' si�ng fees  1 02  0 65 

Prin�ng and Sta�onery  11 93  13 94 

Security Charges  21 03  22 37 

Membership and Subscrip�on  14 51  24 55 

Vehicle Expenses  17 65  17 85 

Exchange difference (net)  831 82  428 39 

Loss on sale / discard of Fixed Assets      12 81 

Auditors Remunera�on  7 36  6 71 

Product compensa�on and claims (Refer note 35)  649 39  2,007 55 

Sales Promo�on expenses  30 56  33 20 

Liquidated Damages  192 97     

Commission and Discount on Sales  422 28  149 98 

Provision for doub�ul debts / advances (Net)  96 68  (66 44)

Bad debts and advances wri�en off/recovered  1 46  (82 00)

Miscellaneous expenses  117 17  108 23 

Total  10,136.74  8,896.97 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

29. Finance costs

Interest on

Term Loans  127 56  163 31 

Debentures/Bonds  1,602 62  1,117 29 

Working Capital  20 87  38 04 

Others  14 56  24 36 

Other borrowing costs  437 29  333 73 

Exchange difference (net)  268 07     

Total  2,470.96  1,676.72 

Note 30 Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises

  Disclosure of amount due to suppliers under The Micro, Small and Medium Enterprises Development 
Act, 2006 (MSMED Act) as at 31 March is as under: 

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Principal amount due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 2006  16 98  4 30 

Interest accrued and due to suppliers under MSMED Act, 
on the above amount

 0 22  0 04 

 17.20  4.34 

Payment made to suppliers (Other than interest) beyond the 
appointed day, during the year

 24 85  28 60 

Interest due and payable to suppliers under MSMED Act, 
for payments already made

0 31 0 09

Interest accrued and remaining unpaid at the end of the year 
to suppliers under MSMED Act

1 60 1 07

Note 31 Foreign Exchange Differences

 a) Loss on account of difference in foreign exchange on realignment/realiza�on and on cancella�on 
of deriva�ve instruments of Rs. 831.82 million (Rs. 428.39 million) and Rs.268.07 million (Rs. Nil)  
is accounted in other expenses and finance costs respec�vely other than (b) below.

 b)  The Companies (Accoun�ng Standards) Amendment Rules 2009 has amended the provision of AS 11 
related  to “The effects of changes in Foreign Exchange Rates” vide no�fica�on dated 31 March 2009 
(as amended on 11 May 2011 and 29 December 2011) issued by the Ministry of Corporate Affairs. 
Accordingly, the Company has adjusted exchange difference loss amoun�ng to Rs. 695.83 million  
(Rs. 8.84 million) to the cost of fixed assets and capital work in progress and exchange difference loss 
of Rs. 612.53 million (Gain of Rs. 93.76 million) is transferred to “Foreign Currency Monetary Item 
Transla�on Difference Account” to be amor�zed over the balance period of such long term liabili�es. 
Out of the above, loss of Rs. 289.56 million (Gain of Rs. 65.14 million) has been adjusted in the current 
year and loss of Rs. 322.97 million (Gain of Rs. 65.14 million) has been carried over.
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 c) The Company has early adopted AS 30 as referred to in Note 1 (i) of the Significant Accoun�ng Policies 
and accordingly loss of Rs. 178.18 million (Rs. 54.29 million) related to foreign exchange difference 
on Cash Flow Hedges for certain firm commitments and forecasted transac�ons is recognized in 
Shareholders’ Funds and shown as Hedging Reserve Account.

Note 32 Disclosure of Deriva�ve Instrument and Unhedged Foreign Currency Exposure

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

 Amount 
Hedged 

 Amount 
Unhedged* 

 Amount 
Hedged 

 Amount 
Unhedged* 

a)  In respect of Short term receivables and  
      payables

      )   In respect of Debtors 

           Exis�ng as on the Balance sheet date      4,240 79      2,630 03 

           In respect of future forecasted transac�ons  904 55      1,723 51     

     i )   In respect of Creditors

           Exis�ng as on the Balance sheet date  9,475 60  10,540 55  3,530 63  7,689 66 

           In respect of future forecasted transac�ons  1,294 63      2,052 04     

b)  In respect of Short term receivables and  
      payables exis�ng as on the Balance Sheet date

      )   Borrowings      3,569 44         

     i )   Other liabili�es or payables      1,101 30      1,181 15 

    ii )   Other assets or receivables      1,354 48      4,781 76 

c)     In respect of Long term receivables and payables  
      exis�ng as on the Balance Sheet date

 

      )   Borrowings      12,805 39      13,478 93 

     i )   Other liabili�es or payables      2,417 44         

    ii )   Other assets or receivables      76 31         

d)  Other deriva�ve Hedge instruments **  10,578 75      9,229 75     

  Note : *The Net un hedged short term payables as on 31 March 2012 is Rs. 9,616.02 million 
(Rs.1,459.02million) resul�ng in natural hedge against foreign exchange rate fluctua�on.

  ** Other deriva�ve Hedge instruments include Coupon Only Swap for no�onal Rupee liability of  
Rs. 5,000.00 million (Rs. 5,000.00 million), Interest Rate Swap for no�onal foreign currency liability of 
USD 90 million equivalent to Rs.4,578.75 million (USD 50.00 million equivalent to Rs. 2,229.75 million) 
and Currency Swap for no�onal Rupee liability of Rs. 1,000.00 million (Rs. 2,000.00 million).

( in million)

2012 2011

Cross Currency Hedges Amount in Foreign Currency Amount in Foreign Currency

In respect of short term receivables

EUR / USD 1 50 6 57

In respect of short term payables

EUR / USD 37 00     

Note. 33

 a) Con�ngent liabili�es not provided for

(Rs in million)

31 March 2012 31st March 2011

Performance Guarantees/Bid Bond given by banks to company’s 
customers / government authori�es etc  18,948 50 20,025 53

Corporate Guarantees given by the company (includes Rs  6,427 23 
mil ion (Rs  4,793 97 m llion) for Loans/Liab li�es taken by the 
subsidiaries  Loans / Liabili�es outstanding against these guarantees 
are Rs  3,172 34 million (Rs  3,658 57 million) 12,249 50 9,400 57

Le�ers of Credit outstanding (net of liability provided) for company’s 
sourcing 7,960 46 8,798 71

Claims against the company not acknowledged as debts 423 66 47 82

Custom  duty  on  pending  export  obliga�on  against import of Raw  Materials 961 18 313 89

Disputed Indirect Taxes 74 29 160 61

 b)   During the year, the Company has received show cause no�ces alleging duty evasion of Rs. 8,609.82 
million on account of wrong classifica�on of imported raw materials. Out of the above, Rs. 6,706.60 
million is cenvatable duty which is revenue neutral and balance Rs. 1,903.22 million is custom duty. 
However, the company does not expect any monetary liability based on the opinion obtained.

Note 34  Capital and Other Commitments

 a) Es�mated amount of contracts remaining to be executed on Capital account (Net of advances)  
is Rs. 579.94 million (Rs. 2,559.62 million)

 b) Other long term commitments  Rs.3,250.00 million (Rs. Nil)

 c) The company has commi�ed to provide con�nued financial support to subsidiaries / associates based 
on the requirement from �me to �me.

Note 35 Product Compensa�on and Claims

  During the year, the Company arrived at an out of court se�lement of USD 30 million with one of its 
customer who has ini�ated counter legal ac�on against the company in the United States of America 
claiming loss / damages on account of defects in the pipes supplied. 

  As per the terms of se�lement the company will pay USD 10 million within 12 months (in two equal 
installments) and balance USD 20 million will be adjusted from poten�al business from the said 
customer. In case the customer fails to give business to the company, then the se�lement amount will 
be restricted to USD 22.50 million. The Company has accordingly provided the quality claim of USD 
22.50 million in these accounts and reported USD 7.5 million as Con�ngent Liability.

  Further, the Company has also entered into an out of Court se�lement of USD 10 million with one of 
its steel supplier against which the company has ini�ated legal ac�on in the Court at United States of 
America. As per the terms of se�lement, the company has received USD 7 million from the said steel 
supplier and balance USD 3 million will be received within 24 months (in two equal installments).  
The Company has accordingly accounted for USD 10 million in these accounts. 
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Note 36 Disclosures pursuant to adop�on of Accoun�ng Standard 15 (Revised 2005) Employee Benefits

  The Employees gratuity fund scheme managed jointly by Kotak Life Insurance Limited and India First 
Life Insurance Company Limited is a defined benefit plan. The present value of obliga�on is based on 
actuarial valua�on using the Projected unit credit method. The obliga�on for leave encashment is 
recognized in the same manner as gratuity.

  Defined Benefit Plan

  Details of defined benefit plan of Gratuity (Funded) and Leave Encashment (Non Funded) are as follows

 I Actuarial Assump�ons
  Economic Assump�ons

Major Assump�ons 2012 (%p.a.) 2011(%p.a.)

Discount Rate (p a ) 8 5 8 5

Expected Return on Assets 7 5 7 5

Salary Escala�on Rate 5 75 5 75
 

Demographic Assump�ons

Major Assump�ons

Mortality Latest Compiled Table of LIC (1994 96)

Re�rement Age 60 years for all staff and workers (except Presidents and above re�rement age is 62 Years)

A�ri�on Rate 2% up to age 44 and 1% therea�er

 II Expenses recognized in the Statement of Profit and Loss

(Rs. in million)

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2012

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2011

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded)

2012

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded) 

2011

Current Service Cost 74 91 71 28 54 46 52 14

Interest Cost 8 52 7 17 3 89 3 55

Expected Return on Plan Assets  (6 74)  (5 49)         

Net Actuarial (Gain)/Loss recognized  (55 22)  (44 93)  (39 60)  (38 50)

Expenses recognized in the Statement of 
Profit and Loss

21 47 28 03 18 75 17 19

 III Present Value of Defined Benefit Obliga�on and the Fair Value of Assets

(Rs. in million)

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2012

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2011

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded)

2012

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded) 

2011

Present Value of Obliga�on as at 31 March  99 54  98 37  46 75  46 15 

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31 March  99 54  98 37         

Liability Recognized in the Balance Sheet          46 75  46 15 

 IV Change in the Present Value of Obliga�on

(Rs. in million)

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2012

Gratuity 
(Funded)

2011

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded)

2012

Leave 
Encashment 
(Unfunded) 

2011

Present Value of Obliga�on as at 1 April  98 37  70 78  46 15  34 27 

Current Service Cost  74 91  71 28  54 46  52 14 

Interest Cost  8 52  7 17  3 89  3 55 

Benefits Paid  (21 96)  (5 49)  (18 15)  (5 31)

Actuarial (Gain)/Loss on Obliga�ons  (60 30)  (45 37)  (39 60)  (38 50)

Present Value of Obliga�on as at 31 March  99 54  98 37  46 75  46 15 

 V Change in Fair Value of Plan Assets

(Rs. in Million)

Gratuity (Funded)
2012

Gratuity (Funded)
2011

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 1 April  98 37  70 78 

Expected Return on Plan Assets  6 74  5 49 

Actuarial Gain/(Loss) on Plan Assets  (5 09)  (0 44)

Contribu�ons  21 48  28 02 

Benefits Paid  (21 96)  (5 49)

Fair Value of Plan Assets as at 31 March  99 54  98 37 

Note 37 Segment Repor�ng

 i) The Company is engaged in the business of steel products which in the opinion of the management 
is considered as the only reportable business segment in the context of Accoun�ng Standard  17 on 
“Segment Repor�ng”.

 ii) Informa�on about Secondary Geographical Segment

(Rs. in Million)

2012 2011

Within 
India 

Outside 
India

Total
Within 
india 

Outside
India

Total

External Sales /Revenue from 
Opera�ons

 33,209 24  24,487 88  57,697 11  37,769 06  24,934 97  62,704 03 

Carrying amount of Segment Assets  99,875 84  10,698 88 110,574 72  75,378 43  7,471 54  82,849 97 

Capital Expenditure  3,382 64  3,382 64  4,129 62      4,129 62

Notes:
 a) The Segment revenue in the geographical segments considered for disclosure is as follows: 

   Revenue within India includes sales to customers located within India.

   Revenue outside India includes sales to customers located outside India.

 b) Segment assets and liabili�es include the respec�ve amounts iden�fied to each of the segments and 
amounts allocated on a reasonable basis.
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Note 38 Payment to Auditors

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Audit Fee  4 25  4 25 

Tax Audit Fee  0 75  0 75 

Other Services (Cer�fica�on Fees)  2 30  1 66 

Out of pocket expenses  0 06  0 05 

Note 39 Opera�ng lease

  The Company leases office, residen�al facili�es, equipment etc. under opera�ng lease agreements 
that are renewable on a periodic basis at the op�on of both the lessor and the lessee. The ini�al tenure 
of lease is generally for eleven months.

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Lease Rental charges for the year  86 75  118 36 

Future lease rental obliga�ons payable (under non cancelable leases)

Not Later than one year  73 55  109 82 

Later than one year but not later than five years  256 07  399 54 

Later than five years  0 98  9 42 

Note 40 Related Party Disclosures

  Par�culars of Subsidiaries / Associates / Joint Ventures

Name of the Subsidiaries Nature  of Business
Country of 

Incorpora�on
Extent of 

Holding (%)

Direct Subsidiaries

Welspun Pipes Limited Manufacturer of Steel Pipes India 100% (100%)

Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Oil and Gas Explora�on India 100% (100%)

Welspun Pipes Inc SPV for Steel Pipes Business 
United States of 

America
100% (100%)

Welspun Tradings Limited Trading in Steel Products India 100% (100%)

Welspun Infratech Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited SPV for Steel Pipes Business Mauri�us 89 98% (88 11%)

Welspun Construc�ons Private Limited
(upto 21 March 2012)

SPV for Steel Pipe Business India   (100%)

 Welspun Maxsteel Limited
(w e f 13 August 2011)

Manufacturer of Sponge Iron India 87 35% ( )

Indirect Subsidiaries 

Held through Welspun Mauri�us  
Holdings Limited

Welspun Middle East Pipes Company LLC Manufacturer of Steel Pipes 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

50 01% (50 01%)

Name of the Subsidiaries Nature  of Business
Country of 

Incorpora�on
Extent of 

Holding (%)

Welspun Middle East Pipes Coa�ngs 
Company LLC

Coa�ng of Pipes 
Kingdom of 
Saudi Arabia

50 01% (50 01%)

Welspun Middle East DMCC Marke�ng Company Dubai, UAE 100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Pipes Inc.

Welspun Tubular LLC Manufacturer of Steel Pipes
United States of 

America
100% (100%)

Welspun Global Trade LLC Marke�ng Company
United States of 

America
100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Natural Resources 
Private Limited

Welspun Plas�cs Private Limited Oil and Gas Explora�on India 100% (100%)

Held through Welspun Infratech Limited

Welspun Projects Limited Infrastructure Development India 61 12% (61 12%)

Welspun Road Projects Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun Infra Projects Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 60% (60%)

ARSS Bus Terminal Private Limited  
(w e f  3 August 2011)

Infrastructure Development India 45% ( )

Held through Welspun Projects Limited

Anjar Road Private Limited
(w e f 16 March 2012)

Infrastructure Development India 100% ( )

Welspun BOT Projects Private Limited   
(w e f 12 April 2011)

Infrastructure Development India 100% ( )

MSK Projects (Himmatnagar Bypass) Private 
Limited

Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

MSK Projects (Kim Mandavi Corridor) 
Private Limited

Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun  Energy  Maharashtra  Private   Limited               
(Up to 5 June 2011)

Infrastructure Development India 51% (51%)

Held through Welspun Infra Projects Limited

Welspun Energy Transporta�on  
Private Limited

Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Welspun     Water     Infrastructure    Private     Limited Infrastructure Development India 100% (100%)

Associate Companies

Red Lebondal Limited SPV for Steel Pipe Marke�ng Cyprus 25% (25%)

Welspun Energy Limited * Power Genera�on India 26% (26%)

Joint Ventures

Dahej Infrastructure Private Limited Development of Je�y India 50% (50%)

Indirect Joint Ventures

Held through Welspun Natural Resources 
Private Limited

Adani Welspun Explora�on Limited   Oil and Gas Explora�on India 35% (35%)
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Name of the Subsidiaries Nature  of Business
Country of 

Incorpora�on
Extent of 

Holding (%)

Held through Welspun Infra Projects 
Private Limited

Leighton Welspun Contractors Private    
Limited (w e f  28 April 2011) 

Infrastructure Development India 35% ( )

Held through Welspun Projects Limited

Dewas Bhopal Corridor Limited Infrastructure Development India 50% (50%)

Bul MSK Infrastructure Private Limited Infrastructure Development India 50% (50%)

  * Direct and Indirect subsidiaries of Welspun Energy Limited (an associate company) : Welspun Energy 
Madhya Pradesh Limited, Welspun Energy Anuppur Private Limited, Welspun Energy UP Private 
Limited, Welspun Urja India Limited, Welspun Energy Cha�sgarh Limited, Welspun Renewables Energy 
Limited, Welspun Urja Gujarat Private Limited.,Welspun Energy Meghalaya Private Limited, Welspun 
Energy Jharkhand Private Limited, Welspun Energy Orissa Private Limited, Welspun Energy Resources 
Private Limited, Welspun Solar Park Private Limited, Welspun Energy Park Private Limited, Welspun 
Solar Tech Private Limited, Welspun Energy Maharashtra Private Limited, Welspun Energy Rajasthan 
Private Limited, Solarsys Renewable Energy Private Limited, Welspun Solar Madhya Pradesh Private 
Limited, Welspun Solar Rajasthan Private Limited, Welspun Solar Punjab Private Limited, Welspun 
Solar UP Private Limited, Welspun Solar AP Private Limited, Unity Power Private Limited, Northwest 
Energy Private Limited, Dreisatz Mysolar24 Private Limited.

  Other related par�es with whom transac�ons have taken place during the year and balances 
outstanding as on the last day of the year.

  Welspun India Limited, Welspun Steel Limited, Welspun Retail Limited, Welspun Anjar SEZ Limited, 
Welspun Founda�on for Health and Knowledge, Welspun Syntex Limited, Vipuna Trading Limited, 
Welspun Logis�cs Limited, Welspun Realty Private Limited, Welspun Enterprises (Cyprus) Limited, 
Remi Metals Gujarat Limited, Welspun Cap�ve Power Genera�on Limited

  Directors / Key Management Personnel

Nature of Rela�onship

B. K. Goenka Execu�ve Chairman

R. R. Mandawewala Director *

Braja Mishra Managing Director **

M. L. Mi�al Execu�ve Director  Finance ^

Asim Chakraborty Whole Time Director #

  *Managing Director upto 26 April 2012 ** appointed w.e.f. 26 April 2012 
  ^ resigned w.e.f. 30 September 2011 # resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 4 October 2011

  

A) Transac�ons with related par�es for the year

(Rs. in million)

Subsidiaries
Associate 

/ Joint 
Venture

Other 
Related 
Par�es

Key  
Management 

Personnel
Total

Sale of Goods, Services and Recoveries  16,790.16  151.36  1,379.64      18,321.16 

 21,362 82  0 02  1,322 27      22,685 11 

Sale of Fixed Assets  27.97      0.48      28.44 

 0 05      1 80      1 86 

Interest received  271.80      0.41      272.21 

 29 01      0 42      29 43 

Purchase of Goods and Services  730.04      80.88      810.93 

 2,971 52      133 93      3,105 45 

Purchase of Fixed Assets                     

 825 09              825 09 

Rent and License fees paid          72.16      72.16 

         101 77      101 77 

Dona�ons          22.65      22.65 

         25 33      25 33 

Reimbursement of expenses paid (net)  299.90      51.68      351.58 

 19 25  0 05  84 21      103 50 

Directors remunera�on              31.05  31.05 

             80 44  80 44 

Loans, Advances and Deposits given  1,509.93      72.91      1,582.84 

 1,948 46              1,948 46 

Loans, Advances and Deposits given repaid  1,357.58              1,357.58 

 863 99              863 99 

Investment in Shares  9,007.27  260.01          9,267.28 

 826 26  2 60  0 05      828 91 

Investment in Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures  1,500.00              1,500.00 

 2,250 00              2,250 00 

Sale of Shares  0.13              0.13 

Share Applica�on money given  2,733.55  2,594.77  215.00      5,543.32 

 4,328 02  549 00  130 00      5,007 02 

Share Applica�on money given repaid / adjusted  437.63  2,003.40  150.00  2,591.03 

 5,923 59  202 60      6,126 19 
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B) Closing balances as at 31 March 2012

(Rs. in million)

Subsidiaries
Associate 

/ Joint 
Venture

Other 
Related 
Par�es

Key  
Management 

Personnel
Total

Loans, Advances and Deposits given  1,381.53      388.38      1,769.91 

 1,070 59      428 37      1,498 96 

Corporate Guarantees given  6,427.23  4,999.30  822.97      12,249.50 

 4,793 96  3,783 63  822 97      9,400 57 

Investments in Shares  11,531.02  262.77  0.82      11,794.61 

 2,523 86  2 76  0 82      2,527 44 

Investment in Op�ona ly Conver�ble Debentures  2,830.00              2,830.00 

 2,250 00              2,250 00 

Share Applica�on money  2,807.24  699.76  195.00      3,702.00 

 556 32  368 40  130 00      1,054 72 

Trade Receivables  2,742.68      14.54      2,757.22 

 127 15      6 29      133 44 

Interest Receivable  175.04              175.04 

                    

Trade Payables * [Rs 2374 (Rs  1187)]     0.00  3.20      3.20 

 1 61 0 00          1 61 

Trade Advances received                     

 2,204 21              2,204 21 

 * Denotes figures less than Rs. 10,000/

 Disclosure in respect of transac�ons which are more than 10% of the total Transac�ons of the same type 
with related par�es during the year:

 i Sale of Goods / Services and Recoveries   Welspun Tradings Limited Rs. 8,701.43 million  (Rs. 12,646.43 
million) (Refer note 55), Welspun Tubular LLC Rs. 7,703.42 million (Rs. 8,437.01 million)

 ii Sale of Fixed Assets  Welspun Tubular LLC Rs. 27.97 million (Rs. Nil), Remi Metals Gujarat Limited Rs. Nil  
(Rs. 1.80 million)

 iii Purchase of Goods and Services  Welspun Tubular LLC Rs. 561.94 million (Rs. 297.79 million), Welspun 
Projects Limited Rs. 167.34 million (Rs. 104.21 million), Welspun Steel Limited Rs. 24.73 million (Rs. 
74.41 million), Welspun Logis�cs Limited Rs. 50.20 million (Rs. 49.23 million), Welspun Tradings Limited 
Rs. 0.76 million (Rs. 2,569.52 million)

 iv Purchase of Fixed assets  welspurn pipes Limited Rs  Nil ( Rs  825.09 million) 

 v Rent paid  Welspun Realty Private Limited Rs. 65.03 million (Rs. 92.53 million)     

 vi Dona�on paid  Welspun Founda�on for Health and Knowledge Rs. 22.65 million (Rs. 25.33 million) 
(meant for Corporate Social Responsibility ac�vi�es)

 vii Interest received  Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Rs. 73.29 million (Rs. 29.01 million), 
Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 196.07 million (Rs. Nil)

 viii Loans, Advances and Deposits given  Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Rs. 424.45 million 
(Rs. 963.97 million), Welspun Maxsteel Limited Rs. 1085.48 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Infratech Limited 
Rs. Nil (Rs. 841.49 million)

 ix Loans, Advances and Deposits given repaid / adjusted  Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited 
Rs. 272.10 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Maxsteel Limited Rs. 1085.48 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Infratech 
Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 841.49 million)

 x Investment in Shares of  Welspun Maxsteel Limited Rs. 8,042.17 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Infratech 
Limited Rs.  920 million (Rs. Nil) converted out of Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures, Welspun Mauri�us 
Holdings Limited Rs. 0.10 million (Rs. 684.65 million), Investment in Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures 
issued by Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 1,500 million (Rs. 2,250 million)

 xi Sale of Investments in Welspun Construc�ons Private Limited Rs. 0.13 million (Rs. Nil)

 xii Share Applica�on Money given  Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 2,594.77 million (Rs. 549.00 million), 
Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 1,126.55 million (Rs. 2,641.00 million), Welspun Mauri�us Holdings 
Limited Rs. 1,513.40 million (Rs. 681.06 million), Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Rs. 45 
million (Rs. 985.30 million)

 xiii Share Applica�on Money given includes repaid / adjusted by   Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 2,003.40 
million (Rs. 202.60 million), Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 411.35 million (Rs. 3,420.85 million),  
Welspun Natural Resources Private Limited Rs. 45 million (Rs. 1,056.86 million)     

 xiv Reimbursement of Expenses (net)  Welspun India Limited Rs. 42.66 million (Rs. 80.77 million), Welspun 
Tubular LLC Rs. 281.13 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Infratech Limited Rs Nil (Rs 19.25 million)

 Disclosure of Closing balances as at 31 March 2012

 i Loans, Advances and Deposits  Welspun Logis�cs Limited Rs. 52.40 million (Rs. 52.40 million), 
Welspun Realty Private Limited Rs. 320.48 million (Rs. 356.48 million), Welspun Natural Resources 
Private Limited Rs. 1,189.61 million (Rs. 963.97 million).

 ii Trade Receivables  Welspun Tubular LLC Rs. 1,140.97 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Tradings Limited Rs. 
1,555.82 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Projects Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 115.80 million)
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 iii Trade Payables  Welspun India Limited Rs. 0.63 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Retail Limited Rs. 2.57 million 
(Rs. Nil)

 iv Trade Advances received  Welspun Tradings Limited Rs. Nil (Rs. 1,068.12 million), Welspun Tubular LLC 
Rs. Nil (Rs. 1,136.09 million)

 v Investments held  Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 1,920.85 million (Rs. 1,000.85 million), Welspun 
Maxsteel Limited Rs. 8,042.17 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Pipes Inc. Rs. 645.94 million (Rs. 645.94 
million), Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited Rs. 684.74 million (Rs. 684.65 million), Welspun Infratech 
Limited  Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures Rs. 2,830 million (Rs. 2,250 million)      
   

 vi Share Applica�on Money given  Welspun Energy Limited Rs. 699.76 million (Rs. 368.40 million), 
Welspun Infratech Limited Rs. 715.20 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Pipes Limited Rs. 578.64 million (Rs. 
555.54 million), Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited Rs. 1,513.40 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun Cap�ve 
Power Genera�on Limited Rs. 195 million (Rs. 130 million)

 vii Guarantees and Collaterals given  Welspun Pipes Inc Rs. 4,070 million (Rs. 3,567.60 million), Welspun 
Urja Private Limited Rs. 1,709.30 million (Rs. 1,709.30 million), Welspun Mauri�us Holdings Limited Rs. 
Nil (Rs. 1,181.77 million), Welspun Middle East Pipes Company LLC Rs. 2,035 million (Rs. Nil), Welspun 
Energy Limited Rs. 1,270 million (Rs.750 million), Adani Welspun Explora�on Limited Rs. 1,470 million 
(Rs. 700 million)

 viii Directors Remunera�on  

(Rs. in million)

Name Rela�on 2012 2011

B  K  Goenka Execu�ve Chairman  11 78  57 58 

R  R  Mandawewala Managing Director *  10 00  4 74 

M  L  Mi�al Execu�ve Director Finance**  5 60  11 20 

Asim Chakraborty Whole Time Director #  3 67  6 92 

Total  31.05  80.44 

  * Managing Director upto 26 April 2012 ** Resigned w.e.f. 30 September, 2011
  # Resigned from Directorship w.e.f. 4 October, 2011

Note 41 Disclosure pursuant to Clause 32 of the lis�ng agreement :

(Rs. in million)

Balance as on 31 March Maximum amount  
outstanding during the year

Loans and advances in the nature of loans 
to subsidiaries:

  2012 2011   2012 2011

 Welspun Natural Resources  
Private Limited

1,189 61 966 87 1,283 61 966 87

 Welspun Maxsteel Limited Nil Nil 1,085 48 Nil

Note 42 Acquisi�ons during the year

 a) The Company acquired 113,622,058 (87.35%) Equity shares of Welspun Maxsteel Limited (WMSL) 
at an aggregate considera�on of Rs. 8,042.17 million pursuant to Share Purchase and Investment 
Agreement dated 29 June 2011 entered with Insight Solu�ons Limited, Welspun Maxsteel Limited 
and Welspun Steel Limited. Accordingly, WMSL became a subsidiary of the Company w.e.f. the date of 
acquisi�on i.e. 13 August 2011.

 b) Welspun Infra Projects Private Limited, a subsidiary of Welspun Infratech Limited has acquired 35% 
equity shares in Leighton Contractors (India) Private Limited (‘LCPL’), (an Indian unit of Leighton 
Holdings) at a total considera�on of Rs. 4,700 million. LCPL was subsequently renamed as Leighton 
Welspun Contractors Private Limited (“LWIN”).

 c) Welspun Infratech Limited (subsidiary of company) has subscribed to 7,772,727 equity shares of Rs. 10 
each fully paid up in ARSS Bus Terminal Private Limited (ARSS) for Rs. 77.72 million represen�ng 45% 
of equity shares of ARSS.         

Note 43 Conversion and Issue of Op�onally Conver�ble Debentures (OCD) by Welspun Infratech Limited

  On 28 April 2011, Welspun Infratech Limited (a wholly owned subsidiary of the company) allo�ed 
23,889,899 equity shares of Rs. 10 each at Rs. 38.51 per share aggrega�ng to Rs. 920 million to the 
company, consequent to conversion of 9,200 OCDs of Rs. 100,000 each. During the year, the company 
has addi�onally subscribed to 15,000 7% OCDs of Rs. 100,000 each, amoun�ng to Rs. 1,500 million. 
The tenure of OCDs is five years and bearing interest @ 7% p.a. for first three years and @ 11% p.a. for 
the remaining period if not redeemed earlier. The company has the op�on to convert the said OCDs 
into equity shares at any �me within three years as per the terms of the issue.

Note 44 Net Dividend remi�ed in foreign exchange

Year of remi�ance (ending on) 2012 2011

Period to which it relates  2010  2011  2009  2010 

Number of non resident shareholders  27  27 

Number of equity shares held on which dividend was due  22,123,395  22,323,395 

Amount remi�ed (Rs in mi lion)  44 24  44 65 
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Note 45 Earnings Per Share (EPS) 

2012 2011

I) Profit computa�on for Basic and Diluted EPS   
Profit a�er Tax (Rs. in million) 

649 38 3,644 52 

Add: Interest on Foreign Currency Conver�ble Bonds (net of tax) 
(Rs  in mil ion)

 149 98  233 98 

Add: Interest on Compulsar ly Conver�ble Debentures (net of tax)  
(Rs  in mil ion)

 165 61 

Profit a�er Tax for Diluted EPS (Rs  in mil ion)  964 97  3,878 50 

II) Weighted average number of equity shares for EPS computa�on

a) For Basic EPS (Nos)  219,028,187  204,549,256 

b) For D luted EPS (Nos)  278,200,370  229,020,787 

III) EPS on Face Value of Rs. 5 each

Basic (Rs )  2 96  17 82 

Diluted (Rs )  2 96  16 94 

Note 46 Other opera�ng revenues

(Rs. in million)

2012 2011

Scrap sales  1,308 44  1,432 54 

Value added tax incen�ve  670 30  508 15 

Export benefits  480 50  1,321 77 

Excess provisions wri�en back  1,135 91  57 25 

Others  336 14  168 43 

Total  3,931.29  3,488.13 

Note 47 Remunera�on paid or provided in accordance with sec�on 198 of the Companies Act, 1956 to the  
Directors is as under:

(Rs. in Million)

2012 2011

Execu�ve 
Chairman

Managing 
Director

Whole 
Time 

Directors

Execu�ve 
Chairman

Managing 
Director

Whole 
Time 

Directors

Salaries and Allowances  10 00  10 00  9 01  5 50  4 74  17 62 

Commission  1 78          52 08         

Perquisites / 
Contribu�on to Provident Fund          0 26          0 50 

Total  11.78  10.00  9.27  57.58  4.74  18.12 

Note 48 Value of Raw Material Consumed

2012 2011

Rs in m llion % of 
Consump�on

Rs in million % of 
Consump�on

Imported  28,145 94 76 26  26,041 73 69 61

Indigenous  8,762 90 23 74  11,370 88 30 39

Total  36,908.84 100.00  37,412.61 100.00

Note 49 Value of Stores and Spares Consumed

2012 2011

Rs in m llion % of 
Consump�on

Rs in million % of 
Consump�on

Imported  201 05  10 72  187 26  12 90 

Indigenous  1,674 29  89 28  1,264 67  87 10 

Total  1,875.35  100.00  1,451.92  100.00 

Note 50 Value of Imports on CIF Basis in respect of

(Rs in million)

2012 2011

Raw Materials  32,854 05  22,131 50 

Capital Goods  2,286 95  81 50 

Stores and Spares  567 70  946 53 

Traded Goods  6,826 59  8,433 87 

Coal 778 24     628 22 

Note 51 Expenditure in Foreign Currency

(Rs in million)

2012 2011

Freight, Material hand ing and Transporta�on expenses  1,102 64  860 90 

Membership and other fees  17 52  16 74 

Sales Commission (Net)  320 35  101 46 

Finance Cost (including Bank charges)  745 74  586 39 

Professional and Consultancy fees  153 77  250 13 

Coa�ng and other Job work charges  1,583 59  399 24 

Others  80 91  26 03 

Notes forming part of the Financial Statements Notes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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Note 52 Earnings in Foreign Exchange

(Rs in million)

2012 2011

FOB Value of Exports  25,243 00 22,054 68

Job work and Other charges  1,053 84 718 81 

Note 53 Disclosure in respect of Joint Ventures

  In compliance with Accoun�ng Standard 27 on “Financial Repor�ng of Interest in Joint Ventures”, 
the company’s share of each of the assets, liabili�es, income and expenses, etc. in respect of jointly 
controlled en��es are as follows:

Name of Joint Venture Descrip�on of Interest Country of Incorpora�on Ownership Interest

Dahej Infrastructure 
Private Limited (DIPL)

Jointly Controlled 
Company

India 50%

(Rs in million)

2012 2011

Company's Share of Interest in Dahej Infrastructure Private Limited

Assets  0 85  0 89 

Liabili�es  0 85  0 89 

Income         

Expense  6 25  6 00 

Note 54 Other current liabili�es include an amount of Rs. 368.75 Million (Rs. 368.75 million) being VAT collected 
on Sales, claiming it within VAT incen�ve limit, not paid. If the claim of the Company is not accepted, 
the amount may have to be paid and/or contested in appeal.

Note 55 The company has been ge�ng export / domes�c orders and execu�ng those orders through one of its 
subsidiaries. The realisa�on, income / benefits / claims, or expenses rela�ng to such transac�ons are 
on company’s account allowing it to retain a reasonable profit margin.

Note 56 Schedule VI to the Companies Act, 1956 is revised effec�ve from 1 April 2011. This has significantly 
impacted the disclosures and presenta�on in the financial statements. Previous years figure have 
been regrouped / reclassified wherever neccessary to correspond with current years classifica�ons / 
disclosures.

As per our a�ached report of even date       For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077                              

Mumbai                                                                         Pradeep Joshi
29 May 2012                                                                     Company Secretary

 (Rs Million) 

 2012 2011

A) Cash Flow from Opera�ng Ac�vi�es 

Profit before tax  763.07 5,263.63 

Adjustments for 

Deprecia�on/Amor�sa�on expense 1,843 52 1,656 65 

Interest expense 1,765 60 1,342 99 

Interest income (1,219 94) (668 96)

(Profit)/Loss on sale/discard of fixed assets (net) (0 10) 12 82 

Profit on sale of Investments (net) (219 87) (14 85)

Dividend income (405 00) (98 60)

Provision for doub�ul Debts/Advances (net) 96 02 (90 97)

Employee compensa�on expenses (net) (1 51) (0 56)

Exchange adjustments (net) 1,331 96 8 21 

Opera�ng Profit before Working Capital changes 3,953.75 7,410.36 

Adjustments for 

Trade and Other receivables (2,470 29) (599 54)

Inventories (3,342 15) (113 42)

Trade and Other payables 10,379 61 4,416 45 

Cash generated from opera�ons 8,520.91 11,113.84 

Direct Taxes paid (net of refunds) (253 06) (1,321 80)

Net Cash from Opera�ng ac�vi�es (A) 8,267.86 9,792.05 

B) Cash Flow From Inves�ng Ac�vi�es 

Purchase of fixed assets (including Capital work in progress) (2,598 43) (3,973 21)

Sale of fixed assets (net) 28 20 9 88 

Purchase of long term Investments  

  Subsidiaries (9,587 29) (3,076 26)

  Others (260 01) (37 42)

Sale of long term Investments  Subsidiaries  0 13 0 00 

Purchase of Current Investments (net) (6,268 94) (11,778 71)

(Increase) / decrease in Share Applica�on Money given to  

  Subsidiaries (2,250 92) 1,595 57 

  Others (396 36) (419 70)

 Loans given to Subsidiaries (1,509 93) (937 86)

 Loans given repaid by Subsidiaries 1,357 58 0 00

Dividend received 405 00 98 60 

Interest received 543 19 559 08 

Net cash used in Inves�ng Ac�vi�es (B) (20,537.78) (17,960.03)

Cash Flow Statement for the year ended 31 MarchNotes forming part of the Financial Statements 
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C)  Cash Flow from Financing Ac�vi�es 

Proceeds from issue of equity shares (including securi�es premium) 
(Refer note 2) 5,079 47 27 63 

 Proceeds from issue of Compulsorily Conver�ble Debentures 7,883 75 

 Proceeds from issue of debentures     10,000 00 

 Redemp�on of debentures     (1,300 00)

 Repayment of long term borrowings (16 69) (3,181 13)

 Increase/(decrease) in short term borrowings (net)  1,549 17 1,362 32 

 Interest expenses paid (1,506 01) (1,312 89)

 Dividend paid (including corporate dividend tax)  (475 07) (475 65)

 Net cash from financing ac�vi�es ( C ) 12,514.62 5,120.29 

 Net changes in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 244.72 (3,047.70)

 Cash and cash equivalents at the beginning of the year 6,164 71 9,212 41 

 Cash and cash equivalents at the end of the year 6,409.43 6,164.71 

 Notes: 

1  Cash and Cash equivalents at end of year includes unrealised Profit of Rs  29 11 mil ion (Unrealized Loss of Rs 49 29 mil ion)
    being on account of Current Account/Fixed Deposits in foreign currency  

 2  Proceeds from equity shares includes Rs  5,072 68 million (net of issue expenses of Rs  108 17 mi lion) received from  
     "Global Depository Receipts" (GDR) (Refer note 2 (e) of Notes to Accounts) 

 3  Cash and Bank balances include Rs  813 33 million (Rs  765 44 million) which is not available for use by the Company  

 4  Previous year figures have been regrouped/recast wherever necessary  

As per our a�ached report of even date       For and on behalf of the Board

For MGB & Co.                                        B.K.Goenka R.R.Mandawewala
Chartered Accountants                                     Execu�ve Chairman      Director
Firm Registra�on Number 101169W      

Jeenendra Bhandari Braja Mishra B.R.Jaju 
Partner                                                   Managing Director Chief Financial Officer
Membership Number 105077                              

Place: Mumbai                                                                         Pradeep Joshi
Date: 29 May 2012                                                                     Company Secretary
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 2012 2011












